Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny

Committee
Date Thursday 2 October 2014
Time 9.30 am
Venue Committee Room 2, County Hall, Durham
Business
Part A

Items during which the Press and Public are welcome to attend. Members
of the Public can ask questions with the Chairman's agreement.

. Apologies.
2.  Substitute Members.

Minutes of the Meetings held on 1 May, 3 July, 11 July, 14 July and 8
September 2014 (Pages 1 - 28)

Declarations of Interest, if any
Any items from Co-opted Members or interested parties.
Media Relations - Updates on Press Coverage.

N o o R

Neighbourhood Services Revenue and Capital Outturn 2013/14 and Revenue
and Capital Outturn Quarter 1 2014/15 (Pages 29 - 38)

Report of the Neighbourhood Services Management Team.
8.  Quarter 1 2014/15 Performance Management Report (Pages 39 - 48)
Report of the Corporate Management Team.

9. Reducing the Council's Carbon Emissions - Scrutiny Review - Update on
recommendations (Pages 49 - 60)

Joint report of the Assistant Chief Executive and Corporate Director of
Regeneration and Economic Development.



10.

Air Quality Action Plan and Consultation Strategy - Update (Pages 61 - 68)

(1) Joint report of the Assistant Chief Executive and Corporate Director of
Neighbourhood Services.
(i) Presentation by Pollution Manager, Neighbourhood Services.

11. Landscape Scale Projects - Overview (Pages 69 - 72)

(1) Joint report of the Assistant Chief Executive, Corporate Director
Neighbourhood Services and Corporate Director Regeneration and
Economic Development.

(i) Presentation by the Head of Direct Services, Neighbourhood Services
and the Landscape Delivery Officer, Regeneration an Economic
Development.

12. Waste Programme - Update (Pages 73 - 114)

Report of the Corporate Director Neighbourhood Services.

13. Minutes of the County Durham Environment Partnership Board held on 15

May 2014 (Pages 115 - 120)

14. Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting is of
sufficient urgency to warrant consideration
Colette Longbottom
Head of Legal and Democratic Services
County Hall
Durham

24 September 2014

To:

The Members of the Environment and Sustainable Communities
Overview and Scrutiny Committee:

Councillor B Graham (Chairman)
Councillor D Hall (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors E Adam, J Armstrong, D Bell, E Bell, J Clare, J Clark, D Freeman,
J Gray, G Holland, K Hopper, | Jewell, C Kay, P May, O Milburn, S Morrison,
J Shuttleworth, P Stradling, L Taylor and S Zair

Co-opted Members:

Mr T Bolton and Mrs P Spurrell

Contact: Lucy Gladders Tel: 03000 269712




Agenda Item 3

DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL

At a Special Meeting of Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and
Scrutiny Committee held in Committee Room 2, County Hall, Durham on Thursday 1
May 2014 at 9.30 am

Present:

Councillor D Hall (Vice-Chairman in the Chair)

Members of the Committee:

Councillors J Armstrong, D Bell, E Bell, J Clare, J Clark, J Gray, G Holland, K Hopper,
| Jewell, P May, O Milburn, S Morrison, P Stradling and L Taylor

Co-opted Members:
Mr D Kinch, Mrs P Spurrell and Mr T Bolton

1 Apologies

An apology for absence was received from Councillor B Graham.

2 Substitute Members

No notification of Substitute Members had been received.

3 Declarations of Interest

There were no Declarations of Interest.

4 Any items from Co-opted Members or interested parties

There were no items from Co-opted Members or Interested Parties.

5 Tyne and Wear Aquifer Protection Scheme

The Chairman welcomed and thanked Officers from both the Coal Authority and the
Environment Agency for their attendance at the meeting of the Committee to speak in
relation to the Tyne and Wear Aquifer Protection Scheme. The Chairman welcomed the
Corporate Director of Neighbourhood Services, Terry Collins and thanked Members and
Co-opted Members for their attendance.

Page 1



The Overview and Scrutiny Officer, Ann Whitton referred Members to the covering report
(for copy see file of minutes) and introduced David Shepherd, Consultant Project Manager
from the Coal Authority (CA) and Dominic Shepherd, Environment Planning Manager from
the Environment Agency (EA) who would give presentations on progress in relation to the
proposed Tyne and Wear Aquifer Protection Scheme.

The Coal Authority

The Consultant Project Manager, CA thanked the Committee for the opportunity to give an
update on the progress being made and introduced Officers from the Coal Authority, their
Consultants and Environment Agency who were in attendance to answer Members’
questions: Dr lan Watson, Senior Hydrogeologist, CA; Rowan Byrne, Marine Biologist on
behalf of the CA; Kevin Boal, Client Project Manager, CA; Dominic Shepherd, Environment
Planning Manager, EA; Maria Fallon, Area Manager — North East, EA; lan McPherson,
Customers and Engagement Advisor, EA; and Roger Inverarity, Principal Water Quality
Planner, EA.

The Committee were given background information in respect of 60 mine water schemes
that the CA operated in the UK, with Councillors having recently visited local schemes at
Dawdon and Horden on the East Durham Coast which protect the East Durham Aquifer.
The Consultant Project Manager, CA reminded Members that the identification of a similar
risk to the Tyne and Wear Aquifer from mine workings at Westoe, Whitburn and
Wearmouth had necessitated work looking at protecting the Aquifer. Councillors were
referred to a diagram showing a cross-section of the geology of the mine workings,
explaining the rising mine water posed a threat to the drinking water supply. It was added
that an initial feasibility study had shown Whitburn was the preferred location for a mine
water scheme to be carried out, based upon engineering, environmental and socio-
economic criteria.

Members noted that outline designs were presented to South Tyneside Council’s (STC)
Place Select Committee on 29 October 2013 and the various plans and visualisations were
shown to the Committee, noting the location was shielded by existing planting. Councillors
noted that the scheme had progressed through various stages including: coastal dispersion
modelling; liaison with regulatory authorities and the general public; ground investigations;
outfall “buildability”; design; and planning.

The Consultant Project Manager, CA explained that after consultation with STC and the
Marine Management Organisation (MMO) it was determined that an Environmental Impact
Assessment (EIA) was not required as part of the planning process and that consequently
the proposed scheme could be submitted for Prior Approval under the General Permitted
Development Order. It was added that this was subject to comments from STC on the
siting and design of the development, a response expected within the next 8 weeks. The
Committee learned that there were 3 permits and licences that were required, two from the
EA, namely: a Full Abstraction Licence and an Environmental Permit; and a MMO Marine
Licence. It was noted that as there was already an Environmental Permit in place as
regards initial testing and therefore a variation on this Permit was being sought.

The Committee were reminded of several issues of concern that had been raised including

who would approve and monitors the proposed discharge. It was explained that the EA
would measure the proposed discharge against environmental quality standards.

Page 2



The Marine Biologist, CA explained to Members that the eastern coastline of the UK,
including the area around the proposed discharge had, through a combination of the types
of rocks present and the wave actions, created a harsh environment that meant only a
limited number of species were able to make use of this environment. It was added that
technically the habitat had “very low biodiversity” and that dive surveys in 2006 and 2009
had confirmed the few species that were expected for the conditions. Members noted that
a further video survey was attempted, however, it was hampered by poor visibility.

The Marine Biologist, CA explained that the mine water contained dissolved iron, this was
also present naturally in run-off from the land, and the action of the sea would work to
disperse the iron. It was added that the mine water also contained chlorides in salt form,
with the mine water being 1.5 times saltier and therefore a greater density than the sea
water. Members noted that further offshore, salinity was fairly constant, and the levels
closer to shore, while varying, would not be effected greatly. It was added that the quality
of mine water was noted as improving over time, therefore having a lesser effect over time.
It was noted that through natural coastal processes, the mine water would quickly mix and
disperse within a short distance of the discharge point, and that the species that were
located in the area were proven to be tolerant of the varying salinity levels.

The Consultant Project Manager, CA explained that there was no treatment of mine water
proposed at Whitburn, in contrast to the operations at Horden and Dawdon. It was added
that the method of regulating the iron loading levels at Whitburn would be via the flow rate
of the discharge. Members noted the flow rates at Horden and Dawdon were between
120-150 litres per second (I/s) and the proposed rate for Whitburn was 10-20 I/s.
Councillors noted that this gave an anticipated iron loading of 200 kilograms per day
(kg/day), less that the loading of 216 kg/day at Dawdon. The Consultant Project Manager,
CA explained that active treatment schemes were not sustainable in the long term and that
dispersion modelling had shown that iron loading of levels up to 2000 kg/day would not
lead to orange plumes of suspended ochre near the water surface. Members were
reminded that a 90 day testing period had shown that the salinity and iron content were all
well below the environmental quality standards required. The Committee learned that the
impact and ongoing monitoring of the mine water quality would be assessed by a Marine
Monitoring Plan as advised by the EA and MMO. It was added that the iron loading levels
by local rivers were at levels higher than proposed for the discharge at Whitburn, with
levels from the River Wear being 500 kg/day and River Tyne being 1760 kg/day.

Members noted the various actions taken to engage with stakeholders, with outstanding
issues being: finalisation of sub-letting agreement between the CA and the National Trust
(NT); agreement as regards the visual treatment of the compound between the CA, NT and
STC,; the response from STC to the CA as regards the notice of prior approval for permitted
development; submission of a Notice of Proposal by the CA to Natural England to carry out
works impacting upon the Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) and the Special Area of
Conservation (SAC) coastline; and the EA and MMO to consult stakeholders in respect of
the CA’s permit and licence application prior to decision.

Page 3



The Consultant Project Manager, CA concluded by explaining that the proposed
programme in respect of the Aquifer Protection Scheme was for: permit and licence
applications to be submitted April 2014; detailed design to be completed by the end of May
2014; tender preparation/award in June 2014; the start of works on-site late Sumer 2014;
construction to be completed and commissioned in late Autumn 2014; and for monitoring
and testing in the period December 2014 — December 2015 with review of the data and
additional design work, if required, in the period July — December 2015.

The Chairman thanked the speakers and asked Members for their questions on the
presentation before moving on to a further presentation from the EA.

Councillors asked questions in relation to: the flow rate; potential impact of nearby offshore
coal mining; how far the discharge point was out to sea; where mine water had been
pumped to during the period the mines were operational; cobalt loading levels; whether
there was any commercial opportunity to extract valuable metals from the discharge; any
potential effect on species such as sea trout and salmon; whether iron loading was in
dissolved form or particular form; potential plankton blooms; the iron loading levels and
flow rates being sought via the permit; and how any changes in levels/flow rates would be
communicated to Members.

The Consultant Project Manager, CA explained that dispersion modelling had been based
upon a flow rate of 30 I/s and this would be likely greater than any flow rate required. It
was added that the flow rate would be adjusted within limits agreed by the EA in order to
keep the iron loading levels within the permitted range, likely 200 kg/day, albeit any permit
would include a contingency, up to 300 kg/day to take into account any issues that may
occur.

The Senior Hydrogeologist, CA explained that the licences to work undersea coal seams
would be for virgin, unworked seams, not those seams connected to the seams/workings
where mine water was being extracted and therefore there should be no issues. It was
added that the proposed discharge point was at a distance of 230 metres from the shore
and that in the past, while the mines were in operation, the mine water was discharged
directly into the sea. The Senior Hydrogeologist, CA added that the cobalt levels, and that
of other elements and compounds, were at the “level of detection” and much less that the
levels as set out within environmental quality standards, not at amounts warranting any
commercial extraction process.

The Marine Biologist, CA explained that sea trout and salmon were migratory species and
therefore any effect, reiterated as being low impact and localised to a short distance
surrounding the discharge point, would be negligible and certainly less than any
bioaccumulation that would occur naturally in those species as “top predators”.

The Senior Hydrogeologist, CA explained that the iron being discharged was in dissolved
form when entering the sea, however, it would form particulates a short distance from the
discharge point. The Marine Biologist, CA noted that sudden blooms of plankton were
usually associated with organic run-off or larger flow rates than being anticipated so it was
very unlikely that any such blooms would occur. It was added that the Committee could be
informed should any issues occur whereby the flow rate or loadings would vary
considerably.

Page 4



The Environment Agency

Mr Dominic Shepherd, Environment Planning Manager, EA thanked the Committee for the
opportunity to give an update on the Whitburn Aquifer Protection Scheme from the
perspective of the EA (for copy see file of minutes).

The Environment Planning Manager, EA explained the role of the EA was in a regulatory
capacity, to protect the environment through legal controls such as the issuing of permits to
prevent any deterioration of the quality of water in both the North Sea and the drinking
water supply aquifer. It was added that the proposals by the CA attempted to mitigate the
impact to the North Sea and the aquifer, and that consultation with stakeholders would
follow the permit and licence applications. Councillors noted that subsequent to the
consultation process and a technical assessment of the proposals, conditions would be set
accordingly. Members noted that there was also a need to balance any potential risk to the
North Sea against the risk to the drinking water aquifer and if nothing was done, the aquifer
would be polluted within 5 years.

Councillors were reminded that there were options of treating the mine water before
pumping out to sea or regulating the flow rate such that any impact was minimised.
Councillors noted that the preferred option by the CA for this site was for regulation via flow
rate. The Committee noted that choosing the flow rate option did not rule out the potential
of treatment in the future and there would be a review clause within any permit or licence.
Members were reminded of discussions that the EA had with STC, Sunderland City
Council (SCC) and Durham County Council (DCC) and questions had come forward from
the European Commission (EC) as regards the scheme, with the EA providing information
to the EC, albeit they have yet to respond. It was added that information was being
gathered to establish a base line as regards iron levels and that in summary there would
be: no deterioration of water quality of the North Sea or aquifer; conditions determined by
the permitting process; monitoring to ensure compliance; and no impact on the Durham
coast.

The Chairman thanked the Environment Planning Manager, EA and asked Members for
their questions.

The Committee raised issues including: cost/benefit analysis regarding potential for “waste”
products; iron loading up to 300 kg/day; poor bathing water quality at Seaham; how
baseline information would be collected; how public consultation would be undertaken,;
whether video surveys and other data could be shared with the Heritage Coast Team; and
whether any water quality samples would be taken along the Durham Coast for comparison
to any future samples.

The Environment Planning Manager, EA noted that the EA could not proscribe what
measures the CA would take to reach the standards and levels that they would impose.
The Senior Hydrogeologist, CA noted that the CA looked to work with partners in
connection with the disposal and reuse of waste products such as ochre, however, it was
noted this can be challenging given the levels/quality of the products often varied. It was
added that the success at Dawdon of diverting 80% of the ochre to reuse by a local
brickworks was to be noted.

Page 5



It was noted that the CA could apply for iron loading of 300 kg/day, in order to provide a
contingency above the expected level of 200 kg/day, however current modelling and test
data suggested 200 kg/day to ensure the risk to the aquifer was mitigated. The Senior
Hydrogeologist, CA explained that dispersion modelling had been based upon flow rates of
30 I/s with iron loading of 300 kg/day to give a “worst case scenario”, however, levels would
be monitored as per the conditions of any permits and licences.

The Corporate Director of Neighbourhoods Services asked if the EA could elaborate on the
impact of any extreme weather events, such as recent flooding, on the north-south flow
within the local coastal waters. The Environment Planning Manager, EA explained that the
risk as regards flooding events was principally in connection with sewer and storm
overflows and it was noted that over the last 10 years the water quality at Seaham, for
example, had been within regulations. It was added that the recent failure of the quality
was in connection with more stringent legislation, noting that approximately 40% of areas
tested failed the new revised directive. It was added that information had been shared with
Officers from Northumbrian Water Limited (NWL) as regards investing in upgrades to
storage and “sizing-up” of sewers and the EA was looking at issues such as agricultural
land run-off, with a target for these activities to be completed by 2016. The Chairman
noted that further information from NWL may be useful for the Committee.

The Environment Planning Manager, EA noted that parameters that would be tested to
establish a baseline of information included bacteria levels, albeit the type of discharge
should have no effect on bacteria levels, and chemical composition. It was noted that
public consultation would be through the usual articles in the local press, including the
Northern Echo, The Journal and the Seaham Star, together with specific events such as a
drop-in session to be held at South Tyneside, led by the CA. Members asked for the dates
of publication within the local press and any events to be forwarded to them for information,
and the Corporate Director of Neighbourhood Services added that information regarding
the consultation could be brought back to the Committee. The Environment Planning
Manager, EA thought there should not be any issues as regards sharing data and added
that the monitoring regime would be specified within the requisite permits and licences.

The Chairman of Overview and Scrutiny, Councillor J Armstrong and the Chairman of the
Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee thanked the
Officers from the CA and EA for their attendance and information.

Resolved:

That the report and presentation be noted.

6 Climate Change Strategy and Delivery Plan
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer referred Members to the report detailing the Overview

and Scrutiny response to the Climate Change Strategy and Delivery Plan (for copy see file
of minutes).

Page 6



Councillors were reminded that the Committee had received an overview of the draft
strategy at the meeting held 25 September 2012, with a further update at the meeting held
21 June 2013. Members recalled that they agreed to a further update to be brought
forward in 2014, prior to the draft strategy being subject to public consultation, to allow for a
response from Overview and Scrutiny. At a Special Meeting of the Committee held 24
January 2014, Members received a presentation on the draft strategy and delivery plan
and the comments were noted.

The Committee were asked for any further comment prior to agreeing the response from
Overview and Scrutiny to be forwarded to the Regeneration and Economic Development
service grouping as part of the consultation process.

Resolved:

(i) That the Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee
endorse the submission as the formal response of the Overview and Scrutiny to the
Climate Change Strategy and Delivery Plan.

(i) That, as part of the refresh of the work programme for the Environment and

Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee, an update is provided
detailing feedback from the consultation and next steps.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL

At a Meeting of Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny
Committee held in Committee Room 2, County Hall, Durham on Thursday 3 July 2014 at
9.30 am

Present:

Councillor B Graham (Chairman)

Members of the Committee:

Councillors E Adam, J Armstrong, D Bell, E Bell, J Clare, J Clark, J Gray, D Hall,
K Hopper, | Jewell, S Morrison, J Shuttleworth, P Stradling and L Taylor

Co-opted Members:
Mr T Bolton and Mrs P Spurrell

1 Apologies.

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors G Holland, P May and S Zair.
2 Substitute Members.

There were no substitutes.

3 Declarations of Interest, if any

There were no declarations of interest submitted.

4 Any items from Co-opted Members or interested parties.

There were no items from Co-opted Members or interested parties.

5 Minutes of the Meetings held on 12 December 2013 and 10 April 2014

The minutes of the meetings held on 12 December 2013 and 10 April 2014 were confirmed
as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

In relation to minute number 9 from the meeting held on the 12 December, 2014 the Chair
requested the Head of Projects and Business Services to provide members with an update
in relation to the Culture and Sports Services project.

The committee was informed that the Service Grouping was having to find additional
savings as part of the MTFP process and that further work is currently taking place looking
at various savings options. In addition, the level of savings previously thought to be
generated by this proposal would not be able to be achieved therefore the proposal would

Page 9



be considered with the other options to make the required level of savings as part of the
MTFP process.

6 Media Relations - Updates on Press Coverage

The Committee received a presentation from the Overview and Scrutiny Officer on recent
press articles relating to the remit of Environment and Sustainable Communities.

The first article related to the ‘Bin it Right’ campaign which targeted households to ensure
that the correct bin was being used . The second article related to Neighbourhood Wardens
and action taken during March to tackle dog fouling, fly tipping and anti-social behaviour.

The third article promoted the ‘Big Switch Off’ campaign targeted at persuading DCC staff
to switch off lights and computers when not in use which had resulted in the Authority
receiving an award.. The final article was celebrating the launch of the Green Awards
which was in its 25" year.

7 Quarter 4 Performance Management Report 2013/14

The Committee considered a report of the Assistant Chief Executive which presented
progress against the council’s corporate basket of performance indicators (Pls) for the
Altogether Greener theme and report other significant performance issues for the 2013/14
financial year (for copy of report and slides of presentation see file of minutes).

The Customer Relations Policy and Performance Manager provided an overview of
performance along with key messages, achievements and challenges from 2013/14 and
furthermore reported upon delayed actions for 2013/14 along with the updated position.
In relation to key achievements this quarter members were informed as follows:

e An improvement in street and environmental cleanliness — performance is better
than target.
e The percentage of waste sent to landfill is decreasing significantly and the rate is
now half what it was at the end of 2012/13.
e There were 1,170 feed in tariff installations registered and approved exceeding the
year-end target of 1,000 installations
The key performance improvement issues for the theme included:

¢ Household waste re-used, recycled or composted is below target.

e There were 8,999 fly-tipping incidents reported in the twelve month rolling period
from April 2013 to March 2014 an increase of 40.1% compared to twelve months
earlier.

Concerning key Council Plan actions that have not achieved target they include:

e To coordinate the development and implementation of a re-charging network for
electric vehicles to provide 35 charging points across the County by March 2014
which has been delayed until March 2015.

e To produce a new Waste Strategy for Durham County Council by April 2014, now
delayed until June 2014.

Page 10



The presentation went on to highlight the key ongoing projects which were taking place
across the County in respect of the built environment, carbon emissions, natural
environment and the clean and attractive environment.

The Customer Relations Policy and Performance Manager further reported upon the 25"
year of the Environment Awards.

With regard to the Altogether Green theme and the basket of indicators it was reported that
a number of new indicators had been included for 2014/15 and these were detailed within
the presentation.

Councillor Adam raised a question regarding recycling and contaminates. In response the
Head of Projects and Business Services advised that contamination was measured by
sampling loads. In addition waste tonnage was measured when it arrived at the facility and
again once the contaminants had been removed, this then provided the measures of
contaminated waste.

The Head of Direct Services also pointed out that if operatives witnessed contaminants at
the front line, then stickers would be placed on the bins and a follow up call would be made
to discuss the issue with the resident..

Mr T Bolton commented that he noted that recycling performance was falling and
questioned whether this was as a direct result of supermarkets and the way they were now
packaging items. He further queried whether there was a similar trend across the country.

In response the Head of Projects and Business Services confirmed that the rate of
recycling was now starting to level off however in order to instigate further change,
significant investment would be required.

Councillor Clark asked whether a separate waste bin had been considered for food waste
only. In response the Head of Projects and Business Services advised that this was
something that had been looked at in the past and that DCC had submitted a bid for
funding for a pilot scheme however the authority was not successful. The system does
work very well in highly populated areas but implementation was very expensive.

Councillor Clark further asked what was being done to encourage local assets to come
forward for inclusion in Heritage Open Days. The Customer Relations, Policy and
Performance Manager advised that she was aware of work being undertaken by
colleagues to encourage more sites to open to the public however she would provide
detail of the work undertaken at a future meeting.

Further discussion then took place regarding HWRC and Councillor E Bell commented that
he was aware that some residents had been turned away at recycling facilities who had
arrived on foot. He further queried whether any consideration had been given to extending
the powers to impose fixed penalties to other DCC staff.

The Head of Direct Services advised that Town and Parish Council’s did have the power to
impose fixed penalty notices although none within County Durham had adopted those
powers at this time. It was further noted that PCSQO’s were also able to impose fixed
penalty notices. With regard to the issues raised regarding access to HWRC'’s, it was noted

Page 11



that these sites were designed for vehicles access only and access on foot was prohibited.
It was requested by Councillor Bell that this policy be reviewed by officers as this could
encourage fly-tipping.

Discussion then ensued regarding whether DCC could track income from feed in tariffs
from County Council buildings In response the Customer Relations, Policy and
Performance Manager advised that figurers were reported in respect of the County as a
whole but not just for the council. She advised that she would look into this with a view to
including the information in future performance reports.

A query was further raised by Councillor Clare regarding permits for HWRC’s and the
process by which they were obtained and monitored by the council. It was confirmed by the
Head of Projects and Business Services that the permit system was introduced to stop the
disposal of business waste at HWRCs. The permit allows DCC to track how many times a
vehicle is accessing the site.

Resolved:
That the content of the report be noted.

8 Development of Renewable Technologies in County Durham - Update on
Recommendations

The Committee received a joint report of the Assistant Chief Executive and Corporate
Director Regeneration and Economic Development which provided an update on progress
made in relation to the recommendations contained within the ‘Development of Renewable
Technologies in County Durham’ Scrutiny review report (for copy see file of minutes).

Principal Sustainable & Climate Change Officer proceeded to run through the
recommendations and actions which had been implemented or were ongoing.

Councillor Armstrong asked whether the match funding that was required for the ERDF
was likely to be found. In response it was noted that the team were fairly confident that
match funding would be achieved from partners.

In addition Councillor Armstrong commented that a lot of calls were received by residents
relating to replacement boilers but asked whether it was known what happened in the
cases where there was no gas and homes relied upon solid fuel. In response it was noted
that it would have to be profitable for the providers to extend the gas network to cover
properties currently using solid fuel.

Councillor Graham asked whether there was any way of monitoring take-up by residents
contacted by private providers.. Members were informed that as they are private
companies it is difficult to monitor.

Further discussion took place sustainable development and what the government’s plans
were for future building and planning control standards.

Discussion then ensued on the subject of biomass boilers and the Warm Up North
Scheme. The Principal Sustainable & Climate Change Officer advised that the scheme had

Page 12



an extremely complicated application process however the team were able to offer advice
and assistance to householders.

Councillor Hall further asked whether the team engaged with housing associations. In
response the Principal Sustainable & Climate Change Officer advised that the team did
regularly communicate with housing associations as this allowed for easier implementation
of actions.

Resolved:
That the content of the report be noted.

That the Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny committee
receive a further update on progress made against recommendations at a future meeting of
the committee.

9 Heart of Teesdale Landscape Partnership - Overview

The Committee received a joint report and presentation of the Corporate Director
Regeneration and Economic Development and Assistant Chief Executive which provided
an update on progress made by the Heart of Teesdale Partnership (for copy of report and
slides of presentation see file of minutes).

The Partnership Manager proceeded to give a brief overview of the partnership and
updates on the various projects that had been undertaken such as Scar Top and mini golf
course, Barningham lime kiln restoration and Flatts Wood. In addition various other
projects had taken place which had also been very successful such as ArtScapes.

In relation to current projects the committee was informed that Teesdale Views was a t
project celebrating views in Teesdale using photography , with an exhibition of works due
to take place at Woodham Gallery during the Festival of Views.

Other current projects included historic landscapes and a field barn survey project which
recorded unused buildings in the partnership area. Landscape Discovery was also an
important project which sought to encourage people to explore landscapes.

With regards to the future of the partnership it was reported that three further projects were
to be started:

¢ InvesTeesGate, to creat ownership of the local environment.
e Creative Media — which was focused around digital interpretation.
e Creating disabled access to areas used for recreational activities.

In order for these projects to progress it was noted however that match funding in the
region of £200k was required, however it was hopeful that this would be forthcoming in the
very near future.

The Partnership Manager in conclusion advised that the ultimate legacy for the partnership

was yet to be determined, however it was noted that the legacy was expected to extend
some 10 years past the implementation phase.

Page 13



Councillor Adam queried whether any training had been delivered in the partnership area
on dry stone walling. In response the Partnership Manager advised that the partnership
had established a field boundary programme with training which would be ongoing for 2
years.

Councillor Jewell raised a query regarding the legacy of the partnership and raised
concerns that plans for this were not already in place. In response the Partnership
Manager advised that she agreed that the legacy strategy could have been developed
earlier however members should be reassured that this was in hand.

In addition Councillor Jewell commented that the project was very localised and wondered
whether it was possible to encourage people from outside the area to take part. In
response it was reported that the partnership were not permitted to perform direct
marketing, however the partnership did work with Visit County Durham and publicity did go
out via Corporate Communications.

Resolved:
That the content of the report and presentation be noted.
10 Clean and Green Teams - Overview

The Committee considered a joint report and presentation of the Assistant Chief Executive
and Corporate Director Neighbourhoods which provided an overview of the work of the
Clean and Green Teams within Neighbourhood Services (for copy of report and slides of
presentation see file of minutes).

The Head of Direct Services provided some detail regarding the strategic vision and scope
of Direct Services. It was reported that the Clean and Green Team were a combined
service offering area based management and local knowledge.

Since the implementation of government cuts, savings had been achieved by weed control.
There had also been some closures of depots and rationalisation of mechanical sweepers.
With regard to staffing there had been a marked reduction in seasonal posts and
annualised hours had also helped to achieve savings.

It was reported that the Clean and Green Team took a sustainable approach to the work
that was undertaken by the team from growing all the County’s own plants at the Morrison
Busty depot to thinking clever to ensure efficiency through the services delivered by the
team.

The presentation went on to outline the service standards and a breakdown of service
requests was also provided. Further details were reported in relation to performance
regarding litter, detritus and how the authority measures against national performance
standards (KBT). It was noted that the service did compare well nationally.

Moving on the presentation highlighted how the team responded to planned and unplanned

events and the work which was being undertaken by the team to work with partners /
organisations and parish councils.

Page 14



In conclusion the Head of Direct Services advised that the Council had been awarded a
number of Green Flags across the County and Durham City had also been shortlisted for
the finals for Britain in Bloom.

Councillor Armstrong added that he wished to congratulate the team on the excellent
organisation of the clear up after the Miners Gala in previous years.

The Head of Direct Services made reference to the Clean and Green Teams t, f who are
dedicated to ensuring their particular areas are as tidy as possible.

Councillor Bell raised a query with regard to the reduction in grass cutters and asked
whether as a result of this more travelling was taking place to share equipment across
depots. In response the Head of Direct Services advised that it was only the more
specialised pieces of equipment that were not used on a daily basis that were shared and
therefore there was no impact upon carbon emissions as everyday equipment was rarely
moved.

Councillor Adam raised a query as to whether hand cutting rather than heavy machinery
was used in some areas. In response the Head of Direct Services advised that hand work
was only carried out in exceptional circumstances, however strimmers and mowers were
used in more difficult areas.

Further discussion and debate took place regarding the obstruction of footpaths from
overgrown trees / shrubs and the action that could be taken against private landowners in
these circumstances.

Details were also reported with regard to the independent surveys which were carried out
on pathways and detritus. Incidents were also reported through the CRM system and
directed to the appropriate team.

Mr T Bolton asked whether grass cutting standards had been changed. In response the
Head of Direct Services advised that standards had not been changed since their
implementation 3 years ago. It was noted that every cut was recorded, and in years such
as this which had been to date a very good growing year more resources were deployed to
ensure extra cuts were carried out.

Further discussion took place regarding litter picker routes and agency workers.
Councillor Morrison commented that in her opinion the litter bins in some areas were
inadequate for the volume of waste received. In response the Head of Direct Services
advised that new waste bins were currently being deployed which had wider receptors to
take pizza boxes and other larger items of rubbish.

In conclusion the Chairman added her appreciation of the hard work that was carried out
by the Clean and GreenTeams throughout the County.

Resolved:

That the content of the report and presentation be noted.

Page 15



11 Refresh of the Work Programme 2014/15 for the Environment and Sustainable
Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Committee considered a report of the Assistant Chief Executive which provided an
updated work programme for the Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and
Scrutiny for 2014-2015 (for copy see file of minutes).

The Corporate Scrutiny and Performance Manager suggested that the following three
areas be explored by members to identify a topic for focused scrutiny review:-

e Environmental review of cleanliness, fly tipping.
e Waste & Recycling
e Conservation, partnerships and how we used our woodlands.

Councillors Armstrong commented that bullet points 1 and 2 above were standard items
that the committee would receive regular updates on via the performance reports and the
waste programme reports.

Councillor Hall commented that he considered conservation of woodlands, their uses,
biodiversity and potential income was a good topic to look into further.

In addition Councillor Stradling also agreed that this would be a good topic to explore and
other members also concurred with this proposal.

The Corporate Scrutiny and Performance Manager advised that the work programme
would be revised to include the topic selected for scrutiny review purposes..

Resolved:

That the content of the report be noted and that the work programme be revised to reflect
the topic identified by the Committee for focused scrutiny review.

12 Minutes of the meetings of the County Durham Environment Partnership
Board held on 23 January and 20 March 2014

Resolved:

That the minutes of the County Durham Environment Partnership Board meetings held on
23 January 2014 and 20 March 2014 be noted.

Page 16



DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL

At a Meeting of Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny
Committee held in Committee Room 2, County Hall, Durham on Friday 11 July 2014 at
11.30 am

Present:

Councillor B Graham (Chairman)

Members of the Committee:

Councillors J Armstrong, E Bell, J Clare, J Clark, D Hall, G Holland, | Jewell, P May,
P Stradling and L Taylor

Co-opted Members:
Mr T Bolton and Mrs P Spurrell

Also Present:
Mr D Kinch

1 Apologies.

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J Gray, O Milburn, S Morrison and S
Zair.

2 Substitute Members.

There were no substitutes.

3 Declarations of Interest, if any

There were no declarations of interest.

4 Any items from Co-opted Members or interested parties.

There were no items from Co-opted Members or interested parties.

5 Flooding Scrutiny Review Report

The Committee received a report of the Assistant Chief Executive which presented the
findings and recommendations of the Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview

and Scrutiny Flooding Review (for copy see file of minutes).

The Overview and Scrutiny Officer proceeded to detail the recommendations of the report.

Page 17



With regard to recommendation 3 of the report, Councillor J Armstrong commented that he
felt that this needed fleshing out to ensure that it provided more direction in relation to
working with private land owners.

Councillor Jewell commented that he felt that this recommendation was reactive and not
proactive. In response Councillor Clare commented that by necessity, this recommendation
was reactive due to the nature and timing of receipt of the minutes from the Northumbria
Regional Flood and Coastal Committee (NRFCC).

Further discussion took place regarding Civic Contingencies Officers and their involvement
with AAPs and Parish Councils. The Overview and Scrutiny officer agreed to follow this up
after the meeting.

Moving on, Councillor J Armstrong commented on recommendation 5 of the report
suggested that the wording be amended to ensure that a flooding hotline was introduced,
to read as follows:

‘That Durham County Council as part of the Customer First Strategy introduces a flooding
hotline number for use during flooding emergencies’.

Councillor Holland commented that the report was excellent however suggested that if the
committee felt relevant add a further recommendation which would endorse Policy 46 of
the emerging County Plan in relation to flood risk.

Following discussion regarding his suggestion it was agreed that in order to not interfere
with the quasi-judicial role of the Planning Committee the following recommendation should
be added:-

‘That the importance of Policy 46 of the emerging County Durham Plan in relation to
flood risk be highlighted’.

In conclusion Councillor Graham added her sincere thanks to all officers who had been
involved in the review and also extended her thanks to those members who had taken part
in and for their excellent questions which had been put forward throughout the course of
the review.

Resolved:

That the recommendations contained in the report be agreed with the inclusion of the
comments as agreed above and forwarded to Cabinet approval.

Page 18



Environment & Sustainable Communities Overview & Scrutiny Committee
SITE VISIT — Community Woodlands
14" July 2014

Present
Councillors B Graham (Chairman) and D Hall (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors J Clare, J Clark, K Hopper and | Jewell

Co-opted Members — Mr T Bolton, Mrs P Spurrell.

1. Harvey Wood, Cassop - Greeted by Gary Haley — Woodland Trust Site
Manager.

Members were advised that Harvey wood was a broadleaved woodland planted in
2013 that covered 32 hectares of land reclaimed from East Hetton or Kelloe Colliery
and contained approximately 62,550 trees on the site. It sits on the northern slopes
of the Kelloe Beck Valley and is an important addition to the Magnesian Limestone
grassland, fen and older woodland. Local school children helped to plant the trees
which are all native species to the area such as oak, hazel, birch and rowan. These
trees are an excellent way to help local wildlife, providing sources of food and places
of shelter. Native woodland is one of the richest habitats for wildlife supporting
everything from plants, lichens and fungi to insects, butterflies, small mammals and
birds. Wildlife most likely to be found here includes hare, field vole, deer and
speckled butterfly.

The woodland was also part of the Limestone LinX walking and cycling network
which provided 11 miles of routes connecting the communities of Bowburn, Coxhoe,
Old Quarrington, Quarrington Hill, Kelloe and Cassop. The new wood was part of a
unique group created in honour of the Queen’s Diamond Jubilee in partnership with
the Woodland’s Trust. Within the North East 8 sites were secured, 2 within this area;
Ferryhill and Spennymoor as part of the project creating 134 hectares of new
woodland within County Durham.

There area was subject to regular maintenance, with a full survey of the area being
undertaken every 3 years to identify any dead trees, which would subsequently be
removed and replaced. This also included the management of weeds.

Details were also provided regarding commercial activity and it was noted that the
woodland area could also provide significant economic benefits through the fire
market and forestry of trees used for timber products.

Page 19



In addition to the above there was a full programme of restructuring woodland, which
included the strategic thinning of tress to open the structure of the site and also to
allow the good tress to grow to their full potential.

Harvey wood was not at this time established enough to be thinned however DCC
had contacted all local councillors regarding the thinning of 64 woodland sites across
the county.

Reference was made to Burnopfield and the positive management of the site and
income generated from the sale of saw logs and wood fuel. Currently the DCC estate
as a whole was being assessed with a view to thinning those sites which were not
managed by the Countryside rangers (Neighbourhoods).

Further discussion took place regarding ancient woodland classification.

Councillor Clark raised a query with regard to Ash Die Back and whether the disease
was now under control. In response it was reported that the disease had not
travelled much over last few years however realistically they could not take the
chance at this time to plant any Ash in the County’s woodlands.

2. Kingswood, Little Wood, Local Nature Reserve — Greeted by Darryl Cox
Head Ranger.

Kingswood used to be arable land but 39 hectares of broadleaved woodland were
planted as part of the 5 villages (5 Villages commenced in 1997) with the project at
Kingswood ‘Waste to Wildlife’ project taking place in 2003. The site is planted with
broadleaf trees: hazel, rowan, blackthorn, dog rose, ash, oak and birch. These trees
are important as there is very little woodland cover in the east of County Durham and
will provide a vital source of food, shelter and breeding sites for insects, birds and
mammals.

It was reported that some of the Hazel trees which would be seen on site were
around 12 years old and that within 50/60 years a good canopy would be formed. In
addition, the group were informed that when the area was first planted, there were
hundreds of skylarks as young woodland areas were ideal for breeding. As the trees
continue to mature, the number of skylarks would eventually decrease while the
numbers of other types of wildlife would increase such as tawny owls, kestrels and
sparrow hawks. Currently visitors could regularly enjoy the sights of jay,
woodpecker, crow and wood pigeons.

A major issue reported to Members was that following the receipt of temporary
funding via the Heritage Lottery Fund for many of the projects to undertake the
capital work necessary there was an issue in finding funding to maintain these sites.
A volunteer scheme was promoted via Durham’s Countryside Service providing an
opportunity to make new friends, learn new skills, get fit and have fun with volunteers
helping with education sessions, checking sites and footpaths, planting trees,
building fences, picking litter and much more. In addition volunteering was also open

Page 20



to community groups and corporate groups with work undertaken on the various
sites with groups including young supported learners and alcohol and drug abuse
groups and Northumbrian Water Limited.

3. Crowtrees Local Nature Reserve — Greeted by Darryl Cox, Head Ranger.

Crowtrees Local Nature Reserve was a site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI)
within close proximity to Kingswood, Little Wood and Coxhoe Quarry Wood Local
Nature Reserves forming a huge wildlife corridor. The site was also a Local Wildlife
Site and UK Woodland Assurance Scheme certified.

During the winter highland cattle graze the wetland area and fields around it keeping
the tall grasses and scrub down. If this vegetation was not controlled, the dominant
grasses would take over and crowd out the slower growing wildflowers. The cattle
also churn up the soil creating an area where wildflowers and grasses can set seed
and colonise.

Crowtrees is greatly influenced by the geology with coal mining and quarrying
shaping the landscape. The large nature reserve is special because of the diversity
of habitats found there; flower rich grassland, scrub, ponds and wetland make it a
real hot-spot for wildlife. On the edge of the Magnesian Limestone plateaux, the
grassland found here has a rich and unique mix of wildflowers and grasses.

Natural England operate a contract with Durham County Council to look after the
site with Community ‘buy in’ — 6 local volunteers for Kingswood and Crowtrees
together with rangers visit the site once per week. It was further reported that
community conservation days were held at a number of sites 2 to 3 times a year. In
addition, Durham County Council also produced the Guided Walks Programme April
— September 2014 which detailed guided walks planned throughout County Durham.

Various initiatives are run on sites, these vary depending on the site but include the
adoption of a seat where individuals are encouraged to adopt a seat which needs
repair very popular at Hardwick Park and the coastal walks. In addition, have also
established adopt a tree initiative at Hardwick Park.

Work is also taking place with the Sustainability Team within DCC looking at whether
wood from harvested woodlands currently underway could be used in biomass
boilers to heat our schools, 20 boilers within schools have been identified as being
capable of adaptation to use wood chippings. However discussions are taking place
in relation to capacity at schools to dry wood chippings on site, access for delivery
etc.

In relation to harvesting the woodland it was reported that there had been a
procurement exercise carried out however only 2 companies came forward. As
earlier reported there was some extraction taking place at Burnopfield however there
were issues in relation to selling on the wood, due to a lack of business knowledge

Page 21



by the contractor. From a good yield it was expected that harvested wood would
fetch in the region of £11.00 per tonne.

Further work was to be undertaken in order to stimulate the sectors and to seek
assistance from the LEP.

Mr T Bolton asked whether the sponsorship of woodlands (trees/gates) had been
considered on a similar basis to advertising on roundabouts within the County. It was
noted that some of the woodlands were poorly maintained and would need
significant investment in order for them to attract potential sponsors.

Councillor Graham asked whether AAPs had been used to publicise woodland areas
within the County and to identify various activities planned. It was noted that
Corporate Communications were currently preparing an article for the September
addition of the Durham County News highlighting community woodlands within the
county and giving a flavour of the various events planned. In addition, those AAPs
with an objective of woodlands have been targeted with Crook and Derwent Valley
providing funding for local woodland based projects.

It was further suggested that the service could utilise the AAP magazine to
highlight/promote what is happening on a seasonal basis in relation to community
woodlands within their areas and also seek to engage new volunteers or anyone
wishing to provide financial assistance.

4. Coxhoe Quarry Local Nature Reserve.

Coxhoe woodland, the most mature woodland of the three visited was mainly
dominated by ash, beech and sycamore with some beech trees between 200 and
300 years old which supported an enormous number of insects and birds.

At the centre of the site Members viewed the old quarry which hosted excellent
examples of Magnesian Limestone grasslands. Of special note was the presence of
Blue Moor Grass combined with other wildflowers, which is an increasingly rare sight
in the UK. It was reported that the majority of Magnesian Limestone Grassland has
been destroyed in Britain over the past century however two thirds of what remain,
can be found in east Durham and Tyne and Wear resulting in grasslands of national
importance.

The magnesium escarpment provided a breeding ground for a number of rare
species including a very rare variety of orchid which covered the site.

It was reported that in order to maintain the grassland, Rangers were employed to
manage the land to ensure that the site did not become overgrown. In addition, the
site unfortunately suffered from anti-social behaviour and staff were tasked with
regularly monitoring the site and clearing up any rubbish which had been dumped at
the site.

Page 22



The service also relied upon the help of volunteers and many gave up there time to
help manage the site on a regular basis.

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny
SITE VISIT - HERITAGE COAST

Present

Councillor B Graham (Chair)

Councillors J Clare, J Clark, J Gray, G Holland, | Jewell, O Milburn and;
Co-opted Members, Mr T Bolton and Mrs P Spurrell.

Officers
T Gorman, L Finnigan, N Benson and L Gladders

1 Blackhall Rocks
Members were welcomed to the first site and introduced to Daryl Cox, Head Ranger.

Niall Benson, Principal Heritage Coast Officer advised that in terms of landscape and natural
area this site was totally unique and could not be found anywhere else in the world. The site
had recently benefitted from Heritage Lottery Funding which had allowed for car park
improvements, picnic tables, signs and interpretation boards to be installed. It was noted that
ongoing investment was important for the site in order to see the project through to
completion in 10 years’ time.

It was noted that the service had recently been through a restructure and three posts had
been deleted. Mr Cox reported that this was ultimately impacting upon the service’s ability to
manage sites.

Regarding Blackhall Rocks it was reported that the shore line had been significantly cleaned
up and the water quality had improved drastically with such. It was noted that the
demographics of the coastline were also changing so much with many small infill
developments taking place at many sites, which was a testament to the way in which the
coastline had improved and was now an attractive environment.

Councillor Holland queried what the length of the coastline was. In response it was reported
that that the coastline was 9.8 miles from Blackhall Rocks to Seaham with an overall length
of Heritage Coast reaching 18 miles.

Discussion took place regarding the accessibility and infrastructure and whether there were
and direct bus routes to and from Blackhall Rocks to Seaham. It was noted that there was no
direct service however in summer months it had been known for a mini bus to be provided to
shuttle visitors between the two sites.

Further discussion took place regarding the works which had been undertaken to ensure that
the sites was a real asset for the village including the relocation of footpaths closer inland to

encourage the growth of natural grasslands.

The grasslands prefer non-rich soils and therefore grazing cattle were used over a large
area to help manage growth.

Page 25



Volunteers were key to the effective management of the sites and 5 regular volunteers
attended the site on a weekly basis. It was queried whether any work had been undertaken
with schools and the wider community in order to educate and encourage others to
volunteer. At this present time it was reported that the service did not have the resources
available to do this.

Further discussion took place regarding the interpretation boards with panoramic images
which would be installed. Councillor Clark further made reference to work which had been
undertaken at Horden with the local school to install interpretation and educational boards.

2 Crimdon

Members were welcomed to the site and introduced to Trevor Stephenson, the Little Tern
Warden for the area. It was reported that this site was hugely important in terms of
conservation with a habitat of Terns, a species which was in decline in Europe and with such
an amber list species.

Members were shocked to see the levels of litter at the site and it was noted that this was
often the scene on a Monday morning following a busy weekend. Clean and Green
managed the top of the site and the dunes were managed by the Countryside Rangers.
There was no management by Durham County Council of the beach area.

It was also noted that there were currently no public toilet facilities at the site due to thieves
stealing the electrical cables.

The site welcomed approximately 30,000 visitors per year and the site had seen some
significant changes since 2000 from the removal of sand dunes and the natural regeneration
of grasslands. In addition a fully serviced caravan park had been developed.

With regard to the little tern population, it was reported that there was a bird colony on the
beach where the birds laid their eggs and fledged their young. 92 young terns were safely
fledged in the last year. It was reported however that the colony was at risk of decline due to
predators and disturbances on the beach and it was so important to ensure the safety of new
born chicks. In order to do this it was important that the landscape was carefully managed
and any marram grass was removed to prevent hawks and other predators. Volunteers were
key to this process however it was noted that a chemical treatment plan would be beneficial
in order to properly control the growth of marram.

The Warden advised that every effort must be made to help protect these birds from
extinction and further work must be undertaken with partners including Natural England to
prevent the loss of habitat from this area.

3 Beach Banks - Horden

Members viewed the work which had been undertaken with Schools at the Horden Denes
site which commenced in 2010/11. Interpretation panels and artwork had been installed at
the site and were shortly due to be refreshed in advance of the official opening on 30
September.

The visit then went on to view the works which were being undertaken on the site of Horden
Colliery to build the new station taking in the expansive views of the coast.

Page 26



4 Seaham Marina

Members were welcomed to the Marina and were given a short presentation by an officer
from the Seaham Community Interest Company (CIC) which showed the before and after
images of the development of the site. It was advised that the land was owned in its entirety
by the Dock Company however the premises and facilities on site were in shared ownership
(50%) by Durham County Council held on a 35 year lease.

At this stage in the development the team were busy trying to get tenants in to fill the empty
units with 56 out of the 77 already being let. The flagship building ‘The Waterside’ comprises
of 12 commercial units, a marina using floating pontoons to accommodate up to 77

leisure craft, reinstatement of the dock gates, improved slipway and public access to the
North Dock.

Because of the areas industrial past all of the houses in the area had been built facing
inland, however with more new development and the regeneration of the coastline houses
were now being built facing out to sea.

The regeneration of the area was part of a 10 year plan which was currently 1.5 years in and
currently on target.

Further discussion took place regarding housing development and the County Durham Plan
and future regeneration of the area including retail units and office spaces to let.

In conclusion it was noted that due to the extensive regeneration and conservation of the

marina and surrounding area people were now regularly visiting and spending the day at the
site.

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



Environment and Sustainable Agenda ltem 7
Communities Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

2 October 2014

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES QUARTER 4
REVENUE & CAPITAL OUTTURN 2013/ 2014

Report of Neighbourhood Services Management Team

Purpose of the report

1 To set out details of the final outturn for 2013/14, highlighting variances against
revenue and capital budgets for Neighbourhood Services.

Executive Summary

2 The final 2013/14 Revenue Outturn for Neighbourhood Services was under budget
against the cash limit by £0.966m. This takes into account adjustments for sums
outside the cash limit such as redundancy costs which are met from the strategic

reserves, and use of / contributions to earmarked reserves.

3 The final 2013/14 Capital Outturn for Neighbourhood Services was under budget by
£4.632m

Neighbourhood Services Revenue 2013/14

4 The summary of the revenue outturn position, is shown in the following table analysed
by Head of Service:

QTR 4 Report
Cash limit
Revised Base Variance Reserves / Variance
Head of Service Budget Final Outturn| Over/ outside cash Over/
2013/14 2013/14 (Under) limit (Under)
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Central Costs 1,499 977 (522) 230 (293)
Direct Services 38,300 34,933 (3,367) 2,655 (711)
Env, Health & C. Prof 6,512 6,401 (111) (165) (276)
Proj & Business Serv 16,239 15,757 (482) 1,019 537
Culture & Sport 22,726 28,106 5,380 (5,261) 119
Technical Services 24,776 9,863 (14,913) 14,569 (344)
Total 110,051 96,038 (14,013) 13,047 (966)
5 The final revenue outturn for 2013/14 was under budget against the cash limit by
£0.966m, after taking account of the forecast use of reserves, and items outside the

cash limit.

Pagehobé



8

The cash limit outturn position compares to the previously forecast Quarter 3 position
of a cash limit underspend of £0.844m.

The following section outlines the main reasons for the variance against budget;

There was an underspend of £0.600m within Technical Services, which was mainly
due to a higher than anticipated surplus being generated within the Highways
Services trading account. This was a result of increased levels of workload across
the year partly due to the extremely mild winter, along with an improvement in
efficiency as a result of the review of workforce levels at the end of 2012/13.

Within Direct Services, there was an underspend of £0.500m, due to savings in the
running costs of council accommodation, and an increased surplus within the Building
Services trading account.

An overspend of £0.500m within Strategic Waste was due to higher than anticipated
one off costs associated with maintaining landfill gas power generation equipment,
and also a continuing fall in income from the sale of dry recyclates. The fall in income
is due to prevailing market conditions and higher than anticipated levels of
contamination within the recyclable material that is collected.

The Library Service was £0.200m underspent due to savings associated with changes
in opening hours and shift patterns brought about by the early implementation of a
2014/15 MTFP saving.

Finally, there was an underspend of approximately £0.200m within the Environment,
Health and Consumer Protection service due to savings in employees and supplies
and services. A significant proportion of this is due to the early achievement of MTFP
savings planned for 2014/15.

Further to the quarter 3 forecast outturn report, the following items have been excluded
from the outturn in arriving at the cash limit:

e £3.377m — relates to contributions to and from earmarked reserves and cash limits to

support specific projects in 2013/14 and 2014/15, including a £0.454m use of
earmarked reserves to support one off expenditure in Culture and Sport; a £1.511m
contribution to earmarked reserves in respect of Highways, Waste Disposal, and
Environmental Health; a £1.115m contribution to earmarked reserves in respect of
Buildings and Grounds Maintenance, and Street Cleaning; and a £0.350m
contribution to earmarked reserves for Customer Services. Neighourhood Services
has utilised £0.495m from its cash limit reserve during the financial year.

An additional underspend (against the quarter 3 forecast) on Winter Maintenance
activities of £0.312m. In previous years, any overspends on Winter Maintenance
have been treated as outside the cash limit. The 2014/15 budget has been increased
by £1.3m and an earmarked reserve is being created corporately at year end to better
manage these costs within the Neighbourhoods cash limit in future years. The Winter
Maintenance Reserve established at year end is £1m and this will utilised in future
years in severe winter events should the increased budget be insufficient to meet the
unavoidable costs in this area.

£9.671m relates to a range of adjustments associated with capital charges,
centralised repairs and maintenance and central administration.

Page 30 Page 2 of 5



9 Taking the outturn position into account, the Cash Limit Reserve to be carried forward for

Neighbourhood Services is £2.782m, although it should be noted that there is pre-
committed planned use of this reserve of £0.360m across the MTFP 4 period.

Neighbourhood Services Capital 2013/2014

10

11

The following table sets out details of final spend for 2013/14 analysed by individual
Heads of Service areas within the Neighbourhoods capital programme against the
revised budget.

Head of Service Revised Budget Outturn Variance
£000 £000s £000s

EH&CP 14 0 (14)
Direct Services 4,082 1,967 (2,115)
P & B Services 848 367 (481)
Culture and Sport 2,043 1,603 (440)
Technical Services 23,736 22,154 (1,582)
Total 30,722 26,090 (4,632)

The 2013/14 capital spend for Neighbourhood Services was £26.090m against a
revised budget of £30.722m, which is a £4.632m underspend for the year. The main
reasons accounting for the outturn position are as follows:

Direct Services — Underspend £2.115m. The underspend primarily relates to delays in
the implementation of the Garden Waste scheme, which delayed the procurement of
wheeled bins and also procurement issues connected with vehicles and plant led to
delays in delivery and an associated underspend of £0.886m. Outstanding work on
Bereavement and Environmental Improvement schemes expected to be completed in
2013/14 is now due for completion in 2014/15.

Culture and Sport — Underspend £0.440m. The delay in notification of HLF grant
connected with the restoration of Wharton Park delayed progress and contributed to
the majority of the Culture and Sport underspend.

Projects and Business — Underspend £0.481m. Improvements to the Waste Transfer
Stations previously expected to be completed in 2013/14 are now scheduled for
completion in 2014/15.

Technical Services — Underspend £1.582m. Primarily due to several projects
spanning multiple financial years where works have been committed in 2013/14 but
will be completed in 2014/15.

Environmental Health and Consumer Protection — Underspend £0.014m.
Development of single integrated environmental health system was completed under
budget — the residual budget is not required and can be released to capital
contingencies.

Page 3,08



Recommendations
12 It is recommended that:

. Members of Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny
Committee note the final outturn position on Revenue and Capital for 2013/14.

Contact: Terry Collins Tel: 03000 268080
Phil Curran Tel: 03000 261967

Page 32 Page 4 of 5



APPENDIX 1 - Implications

Finance

To set out details of the final outturn for 2013/14, highlighting areas of over / underspend
against the revenue and capital budgets for Neighbourhood Services, at each Head of
Service level and for the whole of Neighbourhood Services.

Staffing
There are no implications associated with this report.

Risk

There are no implications associated with this report.

Equality and Diversity/Public Sector Equality Duty
There are no implications associated with this report.

Accommodation
There are no implications associated with this report.

Crime and Disorder
There are no implications associated with this report.

Human Rights
There are no implications associated with this report.

Consultation
There are no implications associated with this report.

Procurement
There are no implications associated with this report.

Disability Issues
There are no implications associated with this report.
Legal Implications

There are no implications associated with this report.

Page 089



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



Environment and Sustainable
Communities Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

2 October 2014

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES QUARTER 1
REVENUE & CAPITAL OUTTURN 2014 /2015

Report of Neighbourhood Services Management Team

Purpose of the report

1 To set out details of the forecast outturn as at Quarter 1 for 2014/15, highlighting
variances against revenue and capital budgets for Neighbourhood Services.

Executive Summary

2 The Q1 forecast for the 2014/15 Revenue Outturn for Neighbourhood Services was
under budget against the cash limit by £0.486m. This takes into account adjustments
for sums outside the cash limit such as redundancy costs which are met from the
strategic reserves, and use of / contributions to earmarked reserves.

3 The Q1 forecast for the 2014/15 Capital Outturn is currently estimated to be in line
with the budget.
Neighbourhood Services Revenue 2014/2015

4 The summary of the revenue outturn position, is shown in the following table analysed
by Head of Service:

QTR 1 Report
Cash limit
Revised Base Quarter 1 Variance Reserves / Variance
Head of Service Budget Forecast Over/ outside cash Over/
2014/15 (Apr-Jun) (Under) limit (Under)
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Central Costs 1,318 1,325 7 0 7
Direct Services 37,535 38,240 706 (1,049) (343)
Env, Health & C. Prot 5,862 6,067 205 (286) (81)
Proj & Business Serv 15,453 16,750 1,297 (997) 300
Culture & Sport 22,593 23,831 1,238 (1,195) 43
Technical Services 27,325 28,161 836 (1,248) (412)
Total 110,086 114,374 4,289 (4,775) (486)
5 The forecast revenue outturn for 2014/15 is under budget against the cash limit by
£0.486m, after taking account of the forecast use of reserves, and items outside the

cash limit.
Pagehot4



10

Since the original budget was presented to Council, the Neighbourhoods revenue
budget has been adjusted to take into account the transfer of Community Safety
functions from CAS (£0.417m), a reduction relating to the Fleet Review savings
(£0.386m), which has been transferred to corporate contingencies, and some minor
transfers between Neighbourhood Services and other Service Groupings.

The forecast underspend is a managed position, reflecting the proactive management
of activity by Heads of Service across Neighbourhoods to remain within the cash limit.
The main reasons accounting for the outturn position are shown below:

o Within Direct Services there are underspends on premises costs relating to
Admin Buildings (£0.173m), underspends within Street Scene (£0.145m) and
an increased surplus within Building Services (£0.180m) related to trading

activity.

o There are increased surpluses of approximately £0.350m within Technical
Services in relation to Highways Services’ trading activity, including the Design
Service.

o There are underspends of £81k within Environmental Health and Consumer

Protection associated with savings on employees and supplies and services.
Some of these underspends relate to early achievement of 2015/16 MTFP
savings requirements.

. There is a forecast overspend of £0.437m within Strategic Waste primarily due
to additional costs associated with the Materials Recycling Facility contract for
processing of Dry Kerbside Recycling materials and reduced income in this
area.

The forecast outturn is net of expenditure that is being treated as being outside the
cash limit, and also the use of earmarked reserves. Details of these are as follows;

. Additional work of £0.411m relating to clearing a backlog of principal
Inspections on Bridges is being treated as outside the cash limit.

o Additional price inflation of £0.235m relating to Waste Disposal Contracts is
being treated as outside the cash limit.

o The cash limit underspend also takes account of the planned use of £3.919m of
earmarked reserves during 2014/15. These mainly relate to one off revenue
costs associated with; Culture and Sport MTFP savings, Street Cleaning,
Waste Disposal and Collection, IT systems development, and the Transport
Asset Management Plan.

At this stage of the year, there are two specific areas of overspend that are planned to
be mitigated by the use of Neighbourhood Services’ cash limit reserve. These are in
respect of the delayed savings from the Culture and Sport restructure (£0.180m), and
also a delayed MTFP saving relating to a reduction in the Leisure-Works contract
(£50Kk).

Taking the projected outturn position into account, including items proposed to be
treated as outside the cash limit, the forecasted cash limit reserve to be carried
forward for Neighbourhood Services is £2.908m

Page 36 Page 2 of 4



Neighbourhood Services Capital 2014 / 2015

11 The following table sets out details of forecast spend for 2014/15 analysed by
individual Heads of Service areas within the Neighbourhoods capital programme
against the revised budget.

Head of Service Revised Budget Outturn Variance
£000 £°000s £°000s

EH&CP 0 0 0
Direct Services 5,779 5,779 0
P & B Services 9,566 9,566 0
Culture and Sport 3,597 3,597 0
Technical Services 29,626 29,626 0
Total 48,568 48,568 0

As at 31 March 2014, the NS Capital Programme for 2014/15 was £41.799m. Re-
profiing of budget from 2013/14 of £5.351m was then agreed at the Capital
Member/Officer Working Group on 22 May 2014. This resulted initially in a revised
budget of £47.150m.

12 The capital budget has subsequently been adjusted at MOWG meetings during the
year as a result of additional funding sources being identified, and this has now
resulted in a revised 2014/15 Capital Programme of £48.568m. It is currently
anticipated that the full budget of £48.568m will be spent in 2014/15.

Recommendations
13 It is recommended that:
o Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee

note the Quarter 1 forecast outturn position on Revenue and Capital for
2014/15.

Contact: Terry Collins Tel: 03000 268080
Phil Curran Tel: 03000 261967

Page 3054



APPENDIX 1 - Implications

Finance

To set out details of the Q1 forecast outturn, highlighting areas of over / underspend against
the revenue and capital budgets for Neighbourhood Services, at each Head of Service level
and for the whole of Neighbourhood Services.

Staffing
There are no implications associated with this report.

Risk

There are no implications associated with this report.

Equality and Diversity/Public Sector Equality Duty
There are no implications associated with this report.

Accommodation
There are no implications associated with this report.

Crime and Disorder
There are no implications associated with this report.

Human Rights
There are no implications associated with this report.

Consultation
There are no implications associated with this report.

Procurement
There are no implications associated with this report.

Disability Issues
There are no implications associated with this report.
Legal Implications

There are no implications associated with this report.

Page 38 Page 4 of 4



Agenda Item 8
Environment and Sustainable

Communities
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

o

2 October 2014

Quarter 1 2014/15
Performance Management Report

Report of Corporate Management Team
Lorraine O’Donnell, Assistant Chief Executive
Councillor Simon Henig, Leader

Purpose of the Report

1. To present progress against the council’s corporate basket of performance
indicators for the Altogether Greener theme and report other significant
performance issues for the first quarter of 2014/15 covering the period April to
June 2014.

Background

2. The report sets out an overview of performance and progress by Altogether
Greener priority theme. Key performance indicator progress is reported against
two indicator types which comprise of:

a. Key target indicators — targets are set for indicators where improvements can
be measured regularly and where improvement can be actively influenced by
the council and its partners (see Appendix 3, table 1); and

b. Key tracker indicators — performance will be tracked but no targets are set for
indicators which are long-term and/or which the council and its partners only
partially influence (see Appendix 3, table 2).

3. Work has been carried out by officers and members on developing a revised
indicator set and targets for 2014/15 as set out in Appendix 3. This set of
indicators is based around our six Altogether priority themes and will be used to
measure the performance of both the council and the County Durham
Partnership.

4. The report continues to incorporate a stronger focus on volume measures in our
performance framework. This allows us to better quantify productivity and to
monitor the effects of reductions in resources and changes in volume of activity.
Charts detailing some of the key volume measures which form part of the
council’s corporate basket of performance indicators are presented in Appendix
4.

Developments since Last Quarter

5. Corporate performance indicator guidance which provides full details of indicator
definitions and data sources will soon be available from the Councillors Intranet
homepage at: http://intranet/sites/Councillors/default.aspx. Any queries relating to
the definition manual can be directed to the Corporate Performance Team at
performance@durham.gov.uk.

Page 39



Altogether Greener: Overview

PEﬂorma fee aga inSt ta ‘EEt _

Target performance indicators
M Red

Amber
B Green
R

Tracker performance indicators

Actions N Behind target

5%

OComplete

Council Performance

6. Key achievements this quarter include:

a.

Page 40

During the 12 months ending May 2014, 89% of municipal waste was
diverted from landfill. This exceeds the target set of 85%.

Between April and June 2014, there were 362 feed in tariff installations
registered and approved, including 359 solar photovoltaic (PV) installations
and 3 wind installations equating to installed capacity of 1.337 megawatts
(MW). The period target of 125 installations was achieved. Renewable
energy generation shows the installed or installed/approved capacity within
County Durham was 207.79MW at June 2014; 179.2MW operational capacity
and 28.59MW approved through planning.

Progress has been made with the following Council Plan and service plan
actions:

i.  The Hetton Smithy restoration has received commendation at the North
East Construction Excellence Awards. The grade 2 listed blacksmith’s
building at Hetton-le-Hole was in a state of collapse and traditional
methods were used to restore the roof, forge and gable. The smithy
restoration was supported by the Heritage Lottery Fund and the
Limestone Landscapes Partnership.

ii. Delivery of the Warm up North project across the county shows the
targeted work undertaken including direct mailing to benefit recipients
and awareness raising through the warm homes campaign, has
resulted in Durham leading the way in terms of referral numbers and
installations undertaken. From the commencement of the programme
in September 2013 to 30 May 2014, for County Durham there were
1,678 applications made, 662 surveys completed and 470 boiler and
insulation installations completed. A further targeted mail out to 5,000
private sector properties of cavity wall construction and with low energy
efficiency ratings has recently been released. Considering the turbulent



nature of energy related schemes and the availability of funding,
particularly regarding the HHCRO (Home Heating Cost Reduction
Obligation) the service does not anticipate such a high return for
installations within quarter two, as from July Warm up North are not
undertaking major boiler installations and until this changes the only
installations will be lofts, cavities and solid wall.

iii.  The Big Switch Off project, which is part of our Carbon Management
Programme and contributes to energy efficiency and renewable energy
of council assets and across the county, has won a national award,
receiving the top accolade in the behavioural change category in the
Greenbuild (a national organisation celebrating sustainability in
buildings) annual awards. The campaign, which runs for two weeks at
a time, aims to get staff into the habit of turning off lights and
computers which are not being used and has seen £90,000 a year
reduction in electricity costs and some 420 tonnes in carbon emissions.

7. The key performance improvement issues for this theme are:

a. During the 12 months ending June 2014, 42% of household waste was re-
used, recycled or composted. Performance is below the 44% target and has
deteriorated from 46.8% reported 12 months earlier. The 2.8 percentage
point decrease can be attributed to an increase in the amount of recyclate
rejected due to contamination. Durham County Council has embarked upon a
countywide education campaign about contamination called ‘Bin it Right’.
This communications campaign involves placing stickers on bins, rejecting
contaminated recycling bins and educating residents about the correct
methods of recycling via Recycling Assistants. Between April and mid-July
2014 the Recycling Assistants conducted over 20,000 door knocks across
targeted areas known to have contamination issues across the county.

b. Tracker indicators show there were 9,693 fly-tipping incidents reported in the
12 month period to June 2014. This is an increase of 47% compared to 12
months earlier when 6,655 incidents were reported (see Appendix 4, chart 1).
A review of the fly-tipping process is ongoing looking at the arrangements for
collection, recording and reporting, assessing how the data is used internally
and externally and ensuring that reported data is robust, reported consistently
and used effectively. Alongside the review, there is also a partnership fly-
tipping task force group being set up to look at the issues surrounding the
increase in fly-tipping in the county. The group will consider the data and
plan a multi-agency approach, identify a range of measures and interventions
and develop an action plan and campaign to tackle the issue. Progress
regarding the review and the work of the task force will be provided at quarter
2.

c. There are no Council Plan actions which have not achieved target in this
theme although the action to produce a new Waste Management Strategy for
County Durham has been deleted because the council is no longer producing
a separate strategy.

8. There are no key risks in delivering the objectives of this theme.

Page 41



Recommendations and Reasons

9. That the Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny
Committee receive the report and consider any performance issues arising there
from.

Contact: Jenny Haworth, Head of Planning and Performance

Tel: 03000 268071 E-Mail jenny.haworth@durham.gov.uk

Page 42



Appendix 1: Implications

Finance - Latest performance information is being used to inform corporate, service
and financial planning.

Staffing - Performance against a number of relevant corporate health Pls has been
included to monitor staffing issues.

Risk - Reporting of significant risks and their interaction with performance is
integrated into the quarterly monitoring report.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty - Corporate health Pls are
monitored as part of the performance monitoring process.

Accommodation - Not applicable

Crime and Disorder - A number of Pls and key actions relating to crime and
disorder are continually monitored in partnership with Durham Constabulary.

Human Rights - Not applicable

Consultation - Not applicable

Procurement - Not applicable

Disability Issues - Employees with a disability are monitored as part of the
performance monitoring process.

Legal Implications - Not applicable

Page 43



Appendix 2: Key to symbols used within the report

Where icons appear in this report, they have been applied to the most recently available
information.

Performance Indicators:

Direction of travel Performance against target
Latest reported data have improved Performance better than target
from comparable period

Latest reported data remain in line AMBER Getting there - performance
with comparable period approaching target (within 2%)

Latest reported data have Performance >2% behind target
deteriorated from comparable period

Actions:

|  WHITE | Complete (Action achieved by deadline/achieved ahead of deadline)

Action on track to be achieved by the deadline

Action not achieved by the deadline/unlikely to be achieved by the
deadline

Benchmarking:

Performance better than other authorities based on latest
benchmarking information available

Performance in line with other authorities based on latest
AMBER o . .
benchmarking information available

Performance worse than other authorities based on latest
benchmarking information available

Page 44



Appendix 3: Summary of Key Performance Indicators

Table 1: Key Target Indicators

. . Current
Ref Pl ref Description Latest Period Period performance
data covered target to target
gether Gree
Percentage of relevant land
and highways assessed
(LEQSPRO survey) as Dec 2013
52 | NS14a | having deposits of litter that 5.33 - Mar 7.00
fall below an acceptable 2014
level
Percentage of relevant land
and highways assessed
(LEQSPRO survey) as Dec 2013
53 | NS14b | having deposits of detritus 8.78 - Mar 10.00
that fall below an 2014
acceptable level
Percentage of municipal Jun 2013 -
54 NS10 waste diverted from landfill 88.6 May 2014 85.0
Percentage of household Jul 2013 -
55 NS19 waste that is re-used, 42.0 44.0
Jun 2014
recycled or composted
Percentage of conservation
areas in the county that As at Mar
56 | REDPI53 have an up to date 39 2014 37
character appraisal
c‘g Reduction in CO, emissions
5'2; REDPI48 | from local authority 5.5 2012/13 9
o operations

Data 12
months
earlier

Performance
compared to
12 months
earlier

National
figure

*North East
figure
**Nearest
statistical
neighbour
figure

Period
covered

2011712

2011/12

35.89*

2012/13




National
figure

*North East
figure
**Nearest
statistical
neighbour
figure

Period
covered

Current Data 12 Performance
R§ Pl ref Description Latest Period Period performance| months compared to
) data covered target t . 12 months
IS o target earlier .
> earlier
Percentage reduction in
58 NS08 CO, emissions from the 3.35 2012/13 Not set NA 2.01
DCC fleet
Average annual electricity New
59 NS36 consumption per street light 388.6 2013/14 Not set NA indicator
(KwH) (estimated)
Number of registered and Apr - Jun
60 | REDPI49 | approved Feed In Tariff 362 2014 125 214
installations
Percentage of recorded
actionable defects on Apr - Jun
61 NS04 carriageways and footways 97 2014 90 75
repaired within 24 hours
(Category 1)
Percentage of recorded
actionable defects on Aor - Jun New
62 NS05 carriageways and footways 84 p20 14 90 indicator

repaired within 14 working
days (Category 2.1)




Table 2: Key Tracker Indicators

Performance
compared to
previous
period

Latest Period Previous
Ref | Plref Description data covered period
data
Altogether Greener
Percentage of relevant land
and highways assessed as Dec 2013
175 | NS14c | having deposits of dog fouling 2.33 - Mar 1.11
that fall below an acceptable 2014
level
Number of fly-tipping Jul 2013 -
176 NS15 incidents reported 9,693 Jun 2014 8,999
Number of fly-tipping Jul 2013 -
77 NS16 incidents cleared 7,634 Jun 2014 7,169
Percentage of household Jul 2013 -
178 | NS17a | waste collected from the 21.2 21.4
. . Jun 2014
kerbside - recycling
Percentage of household Jul 2013 -
179 | NS17b | waste collected from the 11.1 10.3
. : Jun 2014
kerbside - composting
Megawatt hours (MWh) of
energy produced from Jul 2013 -
180 NS09 municipal waste sent to Sita’s 28,944 Jun 2014 11,503
‘Energy from Waste’ plant
REDPI | Percentage reduction in CO, As at Dec
181 46 emissions in County Durham 41.2 2011 251
Renewable energy
generation - Mega watts
182 | REDPL | cquivalent (MWe) installed or | 207.79 | AS8LJun | 546 33
2 47 . . 2014
a installed/approved capacity
IS within County Durham

RED 6,655
ED

[

GREEN

GREEN [N N
indicator

oReEN REEN

Not
comparable

[1]

Data 12
months
earlier

New
indicator

200.99

Performance
compared to
12 months
earlier

22.3
10.8
5.1

[
[

Not
comparable

(1]

ED
ED
A

*North East
figure
National | **Nearest | Period
figure statistical | covered
neighbour
figure
6.4 18~
2009
GREEN GREEN

[1]‘This data is cumulative year on year




Appendix 4: Volume Measures Chart numbers

Chart 1 - Fly-tipping incidents

Number of incidents

{12 m rolling total)

10000
9500
9000
8500
8000
7500
7000
6500
6000
5500
5000

RN

\r’\/

ok

Q4
2011112

Q1 | Q@ | Q3 | 4
2012113

Q1 | @2 | @3 | Q4
2013114

Q1
2014/15

Number of incidents reported

7,516

6,791 | 6,875 | 6568 | 6,390

6,655 | 7.242 | 7,889 | 8,999

9,693

Page 48




Agenda Item 9

Environment and Sustainable
Communities Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

2 October 2014

Update: Reducing the Council’s
Carbon Emissions Scrutiny
Review

Joint report of Lorraine O’Donnell, Assistant Chief Executive
and lan Thompson, Corporate Director, Regeneration and
Economic Development

Purpose of the Report

1 The attached Appendix 2 describes the progress made in relation to the
recommendations contained within the ‘Reducing the Council’s Carbon
emissions’ Scrutiny review report published in January, 2013.

Background

2 The work programme of the Environment and Sustainable Communities
Overview and Scrutiny Committee for 2012-13 reflected the five objectives set
out in the ‘Altogether Greener’ section of the Council Plan 2012 — 16. One of
these Objectives is to mitigate the impact of climate change which will reduce
CO2 emissions in County Durham.

3 Members of the Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and
Scrutiny Committee considered that as a local authority, Durham County
Council is well placed to drive and influence carbon emission reductions
through the services it delivers and its regulatory and strategic functions and it
has been part of the Local Authority Carbon Management Programme since
2009. It was therefore agreed that a Scrutiny Review would be undertaken by
the Committee focusing on reducing the Council’s carbon emissions.

4 ‘Reducing the Council’s Carbon Emissions’ Scrutiny Review report was
considered by Cabinet at the meeting on the 16™ January, 2013. At that
meeting Cabinet agreed the recommendations contained within the review
report which included a recommendation for a six monthly update on progress
against recommendations contained in the report. The last update was
provided to the Committee at the meeting on the 24 October, 2013 and it is
therefore considered timely for a further update to be given to members at the
October meeting of the committee.

Page 49



Terms of Reference of Review

5

The Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny
Committee at its meeting on ot July, 2012 agreed to undertake a review
of the Council’'s Carbon Management Programme to assess whether
the Council is on course to:

e Reduce CO2emissions by a minimum of 40% from the Council’s
2008/09 baseline of 105,816 tonnes by 2015.

e Deliver savings in energy costs of at least 20% against business as
usual predictions by 2015.

e Quantify the direct carbon emissions from the Council’s activities and
allocate ownership of those emissions to Service Groupings and
services by 2012 to allow emissions reduction targets and carbon
budgets to be included in Service Plans and monitored by 2013.

e Create a ‘low carbon culture’ within the Council by raising awareness,
providing formalised training and gaining support from staff and senior
management.

Recommendations of the Review

6

Page 50

The Scrutiny review report made recommendations in respect of:-

e The importance of a corporate and co-ordinated approach in relation to

reducing carbon emissions and the need for service groupings to

continue to proactively engage with the Council’s Carbon Management

Programme Board.

e That the Council/Cabinet continues to explore opportunities for ‘invest
to save’ that will result that will result in significant reductions in energy
consumption and carbon emissions and ultimately lead to savings and

efficiencies.

e That Elected Members be provided with detailed information on any
trials/schemes in relation to street lighting in their area prior to
residents.

e That more Eco Champions be recruited to promote simple energy

saving changes. As part of the corporate induction programme Elected

Members be provided with information on the Council’s Carbon

Management Programme and that volunteers are sought from elected

members to act as Eco Champions.

e That the use of innovative technology be looked at to reduce business

travel.



e That the Committee continues to monitor the progress being made to
achieve the Council’s carbon reduction targets through the current
quarterly performance monitoring reports and receives regular updates
by members of the Council’'s Sustainability, Carbon and Climate
Change Team and Carbon Management Programme Board.

e That all staff and Elected Members be made aware of the Council’s
carbon reduction targets, the financial impact and energy use and the
savings that can be made by using energy more effectively

Current position

7 The attached Action Plan (Appendix 2) provides information on the progress
made in relation to the recommendations contained in the Scrutiny review
report.

Next steps

8 The Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny

Committee as part of the systematic review process will receive a further
update of progress made in relation to the recommendations contained in the
review report at a future meeting of the Committee.

Recommendations

9 Members of the Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and
Scrutiny Committee are asked to consider and comment upon the progress
made in relation to the recommendations contained in the Scrutiny Review
report.

10 That the Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny
Committee receive a further report detailing progress made against the
recommendations contained in the Scrutiny Review report at a future meeting
of the Committee.

Background Paper(s)
Reducing the Council’s Carbon Emissions Scrutiny Review report — January, 2013.

Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee —
Update: Reducing the Council’'s Carbon Emissions Scrutiny Review report — 24
October, 2013.

Contact: Tom Gorman

Tel: 03000 268027 E-mail: tom.gorman@durham.gov.uk
Author: Diane.Close
Tel: 03000 268141......... E-mail: diane.close@durham.gov.uk

Page 51



Appendix 1: Implications

Finance — None

Staffing — None

Risk - None

Equality and Diversity — An Equality Impact Assessment was undertaken in respect
of the Scrutiny Review recommendations.

Accommodation - None

Crime and Disorder - None

Human Rights - None

Consultation — None

Procurement - None

Disability Discrimination Act — None

Legal Implications —None

Page 52



ANILNYDS/9€edd

‘sj09loid anuanal pue |ejideod Jueasjal ||e uo pieog ay)

Page 53

‘yoeoudde pauue|d pue dn paulol e ainsua

0] pleog ay) yym abebua Ajaanoeoud pjnoys
sbuidnoub ao1A18g ‘uoijouny SIY} (14N} 0} SNUIUOD
0} Jap.o ul pue pieog awuwelboid juswabeuey

pJeog Aq panledal ale suodal Auauenb pue pajuasaidal ale uogJen s 1ouno) ayl ybnouy) pajeljioe}
awwelbold sbuidnolb aoines ||y "sbuines ABlaua pue uononpal | sI yoeoudde siy] -suoissiwe uogied Buionpal 0]
Juswabeue) UOQJED UO YIOM S [IOUN0Y By} pes| 0} senuiuo) | uonelal ul yoeosdde pajeulplo-0o pue ajelodlod
Buiobup uogie) pJjeog awuwelbolid juswabeuely uogied ajelodiod ay | e Jo aouepodwi 8y} sajou Jauige) ey | (L
uoljepuawiwioosal
a|easawl] Ky, qisay juswajdwi 0} uaye} uolay jo Joday ssaibolid UOIJEPU3WIWIOIY MIIAIY

Z Xipuaddy

€L0Z ‘AYVNNVT ;91 :NO LIANIGVO A9 AIUIAAISNOD SNOILVANINNODIY 40 MIAIATY
SNOISSING NOgJYVI S TIONNOD FHL ONIONAFY — 1d0dIH dNOYUO ONIMHOM ANILNAUDS ANV MIIAYIAO



ANILNYDS/9€edd

‘sabeys Aljiqisesy Ul ale pue je pa)oo|

Buieq osje aie syoaloid Jayung -819|dwod S| malnal
Buipjing ay) @ouo sbulp|ing |00YdS-Uou paulejal Jo d)Is
[N} Y} SSOJoe N0 Paj|o] aq ||[IM ‘[NJSSINSs JI ‘YdIym
ABojopoyiew _sbuip|ing ajoym, aAleaouul ue buisn
payoeoidde aq [m asay] ‘s109loid aaes 0} 1SaAUl

"BLI8)1I0 Yoeq Aed |eloueul) |ensn ay)
198W JOU Op JNg ‘uoionpal uogJed a|eos abue|
Joj Ajlunjoddo ay) apiaoad jeyy uayeuspun aq
pINOYS Sawayos Jayiaym o} uaAlb aq 0} spasu

OS|e UOIjeIBpISUOY) ‘SaIoUBIDIYD pue sbulnes
0] pes| Ajajewi}jn pue suoISSIWa uogJed pue

pJeog Ma3U J0J suollepuswiwiooal Yim sjodep ulew aaiy} uondwnsuoo ABlaua ul suononpal jueslubis
awwelboid Uo }N0 palIed uaaq aAeYy sAaAINs pue sBulping 8011J0 | Ul }Nsal [|IM Jey)} ,8ABS 0} }SaAUl, 0} saljlunJoddo
Juswabeue) pue ainsia| aAl} ul Bunybi] mau ‘uonesiwndo Jojioq | alojdxa 0} Senuiuo9 Jauige)/|louno) ay) ‘seoud 3
Buiobup uogie) apnjoul 8say] ‘pajeniul usaqg aAey sjosloud Jeyun ABisus ul sesealoul Juadal 8y} JO MAIA Ul jey | (&
uoljepuawiwioosal &
a|easawl] Ky, qisay juswajdwi 0} uaye} uoloy jo Joday ssaibolid UOIJEPU3WIWIOIY MIIAIY




ANILNYDS/9€edd

Page 55

‘paeog 10998loid

"@0UBUSJUIBW PUB SUOISSIWS uogJed ‘uoidwnsuod
Ayooaje ul sbuiaes jueoiiubis sanaiyoe pue Ajjenb
Janeqg si bunybil 1@a11s 371 mau ay) ‘Alewwns uj

‘wnuue Jad sauuo)

00G‘/ J9A0 AQ SUOISSIWS UOQJeD S [IoUN0Y By} 8oNpal
os|e |m 193lold ay] -Buipuny juswulanob |esjuad

ul suononpal pajuspadsaldun ayy 12aw djay ||IM yoiym
wnuue Jad uoliwgz3 jo sbuines anuanal ssolb aonpoud
Im Jey) sAemyBiy ui juswisaaul [eyded uoljjiwLz3 e
SOA|0AUI J98l01d uononpay ABisu3 Bunybi 1oans syl

‘ABojouyoa) g3 Aq papiroid (013U paoueyus sy}

0] anp ||am AiaA aAnoalqo siy) aasiyoe sybi| 1eais a3
MaU 8y} pue Aemjoo} pue peol ayj Jybij 0] pesoddns
Ajuo si Bunybi 198.43s 1Y) 810U 0] Juenodwi SI )

‘spJepuels
ysnug 1sed Jo jualind 198w Jou saop saae|dal ) Bunybi
198.41S P|O 8y} JO Yyonuwl ISIym Spiepuels ysnlig jualino
Spoaoxe pue sjeaw bunybi| 19811s g3 Mau ay |

HOETNELEY!
[1lem Alen usaq Ajjesauab sey pue spjoyasnoy 000°‘0.
Jano pajoedwi sey siyj 1ey} ajewnsa apN 109loid
uononpay Abiaug bunybiq 19a.4S 8y Jo Led se

‘palynou Bulaq syuspisal 0} Joud ‘eale Jiay)

uononpay ul Bunybi| 19841 0] UOIIB[BI Ul SBWBYIS/S|el}
ABiaug SIyb| yoaus @37 Jualolyd ABlsua mau yim apimAunod Aue uo uoneuwuojul pajielap yym papiaoid
Buiobup Bunybi 10ans ajep 0} sybi| 1811s 00071 JOAO papI0IIa] DABY SAN 8Q sloqwiaw paos|g s,|1ouno) ayl jeyl (¢
uoljepuawiwodsal
a|easawl | £y, qisay juswa|dwi 0} udye)} uol}oy jo Joday ssaiboud UOI}epUBWIWIOIY MIIADY




ANILNYDS/9€edd

pieog 109loid

‘uondo
SIY} SSaSSe 0] anuiuod ||IM am Ing ‘suoidwey) 093
SE sloquualW Pajos|d PalNIdal JoU dABY M 8lep O |

"SMaIABI
JJB)S Ul papnjoul os|e si pue awwelboid uononpul

ay) Jo ped mou si Juswabeuey uoqien ‘suoidweyd
093 9y ||e 10} yJom)au Joddns e apinoad pue Jaypny
SIY} 9SBaIOUI UBD DM MOY SSOSSE 0} PaMaIAal 8q 0)
sonunuod sawwelboud ay| -yeis 0} suoidweyd 093 Jo

‘'suoldwey)

003 Sk 1B 0} SI9qWIB|A\ Pa109|3 WO} SI931UN|OA
Buiyeas pue swuwelboid uononpul ajelodiod
ay} Jo Jed se ‘swwelboud Juswabeuew
u0gJed S, [1IouUn0Y) 8y} UO UOIBWIOUI YlIM
slaquia|\ pajoa|3 Buipinoid jo Ajjigissod ay

0] UaAIb 8q UOIBISPISUOD 1By} PUB ‘SBNUIIU0D

anuanay Jaguinu ay} Jo 108dsal Ul S|Iouno9 J8y}o 1SoW Jo peaye sabueyo Buines ABious ajdwis ajowoud
Buiobup uogie) Sl [1Iouno) AJuno) weylng 1Byl umoys aaey sAaaing | 01 suoidwey) 093 8J0W UNIDaL 0] SALP 8y} 1.y | (£
uoljepuawiwioosal >
a|easawl] £y, qisay juawajdwi 0} uaye} uoloy jo Joday ssaibolid UOIJEPUAWIWIOIY MIIASY




ANILNYDS/9€edd

"JeaAk snoinalid ay) 0} uosLiedwoo e pue

wea] Jiay} ||e 1o} abeajiw ssauisng Buimoys siebeuew
0] Ajyluow Juss sI SIy] ‘paleald usaq os|e sey MaIAA
wouj yodas mau yy ‘sbuneaw seinbal 10} S82IAISS
|[BJOASS Ul paj|eLl) usaqg aABY YDIYM S||ed 80UaIajuod

Page 57

*Ajunoo ay} JnoyBnoay) Sao1YJo |IoUNoD
1e Sysap 1oy, JO Ajjigejieae ayy Bunowoud
pue Buioualajuod oapiA ‘Buioualajuod suoyds|e)

pleog papnjoul sey SIy| ‘MaIAaY 199]|4 8y} pue suoidwey) ‘adAys se yons ABojouyoa)] sAljeAOUUl JO BSN
Juswabeuey 003 ybnouy) pasiel usaq sey BuljjaAel) Jo pesisul alow Bujew o) usAlb aq UONEIBPISUOD ‘|SARI)
Buiobup uogJen a|ge|leA. SaAljeUIS)|e BU)] JO SSBUSIEME [BJBUSL) |  SSBUISNg 8oNpaJ 0) paau ay] 0} uonejal ul ey | (s
ajessawil] . qisay uoljepuawiwiodal

juawajdwi 0} udye} uondy jo uoday ssasboud

UOIJEPUSWILLIODDY MIIADY




ANILNYDS/9€edd

'800¢ auljsseq woly
uoioNpal %G9l € [ejo} U] "gl/Z| 0} paledwod 1/€10Z
Ul uonanpal %G’ PaAalyoe [1puno) Aluno) weying

"1senbal uo papiroid aq ued ajep
0] sjoaloud snuanal pue |eyded Jo aouewlopad ay) Jo

‘pJeog swwelbold

uswabeuel uogie) pue wea] abueyn
ajewi|n pue uogied ‘Ajjigeure}sng s, |louno)
ay} Jo siaquiaw Aq sajepdn Jejnbas anledal
pue suodal Buojiuow aouewsopuad Ajjauenb
1ua.Ind 8y ybnouyy sjebie) uononpal uogied

1onbuesog pue uondwnsuod Jajem pue seb ‘ouos|e Jo Bulojuow s |louno) 8y} aAalyoe 0] apew bBuleq ssalboud <
Buiobup albbep Buiobuo pue papinoid aq |m uodal siyy 0y seyepdn 3y} JojluowW 0} S8NUIUOD 93IILIWIOD 8y} jey | (8
a|eosawiil] £, qisay uoljepuawiwioosal o

juawajdwi 0} udye} uondy jo uoday ssaiboud

UOIJEPUSWILLIODDY MIIADY




ANILNYDS/9€edd

Page 59

"JnoiAeyaq Jiay} 0} sebueyo Jouiw

M3} e Bunjew Jo aoueuodwl ay} yels 0} bunesysuowap
‘ooe|d uaye] sey 1 aleym sbuipjing ui sbuines
anIssaidwi @yew 0} panunuod sey JO Yyoums big

‘abueyo
a]ewWl|o JO S}08ye 8y} a1ebiiw pue JUBWUOIIAUD
s AJuno) sy} 199)04d JBY] SJUBWBABIYOER/SUOIjOR

Jels uo Buisnooy — sawayos |esieidde
aouewlopad s 1IoUN0) 8y} pue suoissas Bululed)
ybnouy) panaiyoe aq pjnoo siy| -AjoAnoays
alow ABisua Buisn Ag apew aq ued jey) sbuines
ay] pue asn Abiaua Jo 1oedwi [elouBUl} By}

1onbuesog ay] -syoeloid yum ajep o) dn siequaw pue yeys 1day | ‘sieblie} uoionpal uogled s |lounoy ay) Jo aieme
Buiobup albbep aney sajepdn Jaquwiajy pue zzng uil sajoile Jejnbay apew aq slaquualy palos|3 pue yels |e eyl (2
uoljepuawiwioosal
a|easawl] £y, qisay juawajdwi 0} uaye} uoloy jo Joday ssaibolid

UOIJEPUSWIWIODDY MIIADY




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60



Agenda Item 10

Environment and Sustainable
Communities Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

DurhamE{E
County Council &g E3
2 October 2014

Air Quality Management within
County Durham - Update

Joint report of Lorraine O’Donnell, Assistant Chief Executive and
Terry Collins, Corporate Director, Neighbourhood Services

Purpose of the Report

1 To provide Members of the Environment and Sustainable Communities
Overview and Scrutiny Committee with an update on the development of
the Air Quality Action Plan for Durham City.

Background

2 Members will recall that at the meeting of the Environment and
Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on the
10 April, 2014 information was provided on various air quality
management projects undertaken across County Durham for the
purposes of fulfilling the requirements of Local Air Quality Management.

3 It was agreed by members at the meeting that the Environment and
Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee would
receive further updates detailing, in particular, the development of:

e The draft Air Quality Action Plan for Durham City. This was identified
as the most important of the Local Air Quality Management projects
that are currently ongoing within the County. The air quality work
recently undertaken by the Pollution Control Team has primarily
focused on the development of the Air Quality Action Plan for
Durham City.

4 Arrangements have been made for Denyse Holman, Pollution Control
Manager and David Gribben, Senior Air Quality Officer, Neighbourhood
Services to attend the meeting on the 2 October, 2014 to deliver a
presentation focusing on:

e The organisational arrangements that have been implemented to
establish a draft Air Quality Action Plan.

e The requirements for establishing and developing an Air Quality
Action Plan.

¢ A summary of the work completed on the draft Air Quality Action Plan
for Durham City.

Page 61



¢ A summary of the outstanding work that the Council will be required
to complete to establish a draft Air Quality Action Plan for Durham
City by March 2015.

e The next stages once an Air Quality Action Plan for Durham City has
been drafted.

Air Quality Management - Background

5

10

11

Page 62

The Environment Act 1995 requires the Council to undertake review and
assessment of local air quality across County Durham. This has
identified areas of Durham City and Chester le Street where the
assessed concentrations of nitrogen dioxide, a pollutant that occurs from
vehicle emissions, are above the National Air Quality Standard.

The EC has formally launched infraction proceedings against the UK for
breach of the nitrogen dioxide air quality limit values under the EU Air
Quality Directive. The Government has discretionary power under the
Localism Act 2011 to transfer all or part payment of the fine imposed
following infraction proceedings on to Local Authorities that have failed to
carry out responsibilities under Local Air Quality Management.

The Council declared an Air Quality Management Area within Durham
City for nitrogen dioxide on the 9" May 2011. This extended across the
city centre from Highgate, over Millburngate Bridge to the Hild and Bede
roundabout and then along Gilesgate to the junction with Dragon Lane.
The boundary of the Air Quality Management Area was extended in July
2014 to include the West End of the city following the route of the A690
to Neville’s Cross and down to Stonebridge roundabout together with
sections of Claypath and New Elvet.

The review and assessment of air quality elsewhere has not identified
any other areas within the County where the concentrations of air quality
pollutants have exceeded the National Air Quality Standards.

Once an Air Quality Management Area has been declared the Council

is required to establish an Air Quality Action Plan. The Action Plan
comprises of air quality improvement measures that, when implemented,
will reduce nitrogen dioxide concentrations towards achieving
compliance with the National Air Quality Standards.

The review and assessment of air quality is continuing across County
Durham. An extensive network of non-continuous monitors is now
established at all locations where elevated levels of an air quality
pollutant may occur. In addition, there are portable and stationary
continuous monitors at selected locations within Durham City that
measure concentrations of nitrogen dioxide twenty four hours a day.

The projected and planned development detailed within the County
Durham Plan for the county will inevitably have an impact on air quality
pollutant emissions. An Air Quality and Planning Guidance Note can now
be used for providing advice to developers. The use of the guidance in
dealing with pre-planning requests for advice and for planning

2



applications will ensure the air quality impacts from developments will be
assessed and minimised.

Current position

12 An Air Quality Technical Working and an Air Quality Corporate Steering
Group have been set up to undertake and fulfil the requirement of
establishing a draft Air Quality Action Plan for Durham City. Each group
have clearly defined roles and tasks to achieve the objective in the
Neighbourhood Services Plan to prepare a draft Air Quality Action Plan
for Durham City by March 2015.

13 A structured programme that covers identified stages of the work project
and detailed as work milestones has been established for the drafting of
the Air Quality Action Plan. This is to ensure that progress of the
development of the draft Air Quality Action Plan can be effectively
monitored and therefore of achieving the objective of establishing a draft
Air Quality Action Plan by March 2015.

14 The Air Quality Technical Working Group has focussed on identifying and
prioritising viable options for improving air quality within Durham City.
These have then been reported to the Air Quality Corporate Steering
Group that has a more strategic role in overseeing the formulation,
development and implementation of the Air Quality Action Plan.

15 A list of options for improving the air quality within Durham City together
with timescales for the implementation of these has been prepared by the
Air Quality Technical Working Group. This list has subsequently been
reported and received approval by the Air Quality Corporate Steering
Group.

16 The options are targeted to improving air quality and therefore to
reducing vehicle emissions, the identified source of air pollution within the
City. They are wide ranging and cover ongoing work projects both within
and outside the Council. A considerable quantity of information is
available and meetings to discuss this with the individuals with
responsibility for these work projects have been held. These have been
necessary to ascertain the details of the work projects for inclusion in the
draft Air Quality Action Plan.

Next Steps

17 The options on the list are currently being appraised to prioritise these in
order of how effective they will be in improving air quality relative to cost.
On completion of this stage a prioritised list of options will be established
that will form the draft air quality action plan. The prioritised list will then
be reported to and approved by the Air Quality Corporate Steering
Group.

18 Following the establishment of the draft Air Quality Action Plan the
Council is required to carry out consultation. A strategy will be prepared
that will set out the scope and form of the consultation and this will also
be subject to approval by the Air Quality Corporate Steering Group. The

3 Page 63



19

20

21

22

23

consultation will then be undertaken in accordance with the strategy once
the draft Air Quality Action Plan has been established.

The comments arising from the consultation will be taken into
consideration and where applicable the Air Quality Action Plan will be
revised accordingly. A final version of the Air Quality Action Plan will then
be approved by the Air Quality Corporate Steering Group before
submission to the Government (DEFRA).

The Council is required to carry out a further assessment of the air quality
for the additional areas of the city included within the extended boundary
of the Air Quality Management Area. This will provide confirmation of the
decision to include these areas within the Air Quality Management Area
and identify the contributing sources to the elevated levels of nitrogen
dioxide. It will be necessary to review the completed further assessment
to determine any impact on the prepared draft Air Quality Action Plan.

The impact on air quality that the improvement measures will achieve
within the city once they have been implemented will need to be
assessed. This will involve targeting the monitoring at locations where
the impact on reducing levels of air quality pollutant (nitrogen dioxide) are
most likely to occur. It will also look at the impact on the daily profile of air
quality at locations and therefore will involve monitoring that will provide
data over a full twenty four hour period.

The outcome of the monitoring will be periodically reviewed and where
there are grounds for doing so the Air Quality Management Area and the
Air Quality Action Plan will be revised.

The Council is required to report progress on the development of the Air
Quality Action Plan and the subsequent impact on air quality from the
implementation of air quality improvement measures annually to the
Government (DEFRA).

Recommendations

24

25

Page 64

That the members of the Environment and Sustainable Communities
Overview and Scrutiny Committee note and comment upon the
information provided in the attached report and presentation.

That the Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and
Scrutiny Committee receive a further update on the development of air
quality management within County Durham at the meeting on the 17
April, 2015.



Background Papers
Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Report — 10
April 2014.

Contact: Denyse Holman
Tel: 03000 260992 E-mail: denyse.holman@durham.qov.uk

Contact: David Gribben
Tel: 03000 260997 E-mail: david.gribben@durham.qov.uk

Contact: Tom Gorman
Tel: 03000 268027 E-mail: tom.gorman@durham.gov.uk

Author: Diane.Close
Tel: 03000 268141......... E-mail: diane.close@durham.gov.uk.

S Page 65



Appendix 1: Implications

Finance

There are financial implications associated with the work project that involves
the drafting of the Air Quality Action Plan. These include the costs of an external
air quality consultancy to undertake an appraisal of the air quality improvement
options to prioritise these in order of cost effectiveness. It may also be
necessary for air quality consultants to assist with the consultation on the
prepared draft Air Quality Action Plan.

In addition there are cost implications with the implementation of air quality
improvement measures incorporated within an Air Quality Action Plan. However
as traffic is the source of elevated levels of nitrogen dioxide emissions in the
declared Air Quality Management Area in Durham City then it is likely that traffic
improvement measures will be necessary and the capital for these should be
met from the Local Transport Planning budget.

Further monitoring requirements to assess the impact of air quality improvement
measures incorporated into the Air Quality Action Plan may be required. This
may include the expansion of the existing non continuous monitoring network
and/or the installation of further continuous monitors.

Staffing
Corporate and Technical Working Groups have been set up to establish,
develop and implement a draft Air Quality Action Plan for Durham City.

The delivery of the project will involve the Senior Air Quality Officer and a Public
Protection Officer within the Pollution Control Team carrying out the majority of
the technical work involved in maintaining and extending the monitoring network
across the City. Further the Senior Air Quality Officer will be involved in liaising
with the external air quality consultant and also with key individuals both within
and outside the Council to establish and develop the draft Air Quality Action
Plan.

As well as assisting with the establishment and development of the draft Air
Quality Action Plan for Durham City the external air quality consultants will
undertake the further assessment of air quality for the additional areas included
in the Durham City Air Quality Management Area that was amended in July
2014.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty

Local Air Quality Management focusses on improving or reducing the impacts of
air quality. Therefore they will have a beneficial impact irrespective of the
background of the residents of the properties of the areas to which the projects
relate.

An Equalities Impact Assessment has been carried out prior to the reports for
the designation of the Air Quality Management Areas in Durham City and
Chester le Street.

Accommodation

None

Page 66 6



Crime and Disorder
None

Human Rights
None

Consultation

A consultation involving residents and Councillors together with other interested
parties was undertaken prior to the designation of the Air Quality Management
Areas in Durham City. Further consultation was also undertaken prior to the
revision of the Air Quality Management Area in accordance with a Consultation
Plan drawn up by the Communications Team.

The Council will be required to undertake a more detailed form of consultation
exercise once a draft Air Quality Action Plan has been established and prior to it
being finalised. At this stage it is uncertain as to what form this consultation will
take but will need to involve public participation. For example Councils
elsewhere have undertaken this consultation in the form of a series of arranged
workshops and have used external air quality consultants to organise and
facilitate these. A strategy for the consultation will be established with the
involvement of the Communications Team.

Procurement

It may be necessary to purchase further monitoring equipment and/or
consultancy services to enable the Council to complete these projects. The
purchase of further monitoring equipment or consultancy services, if required,
will be undertaken in accordance with the applicable Council procurement
policies and procedures.

Disability Issues
None

Risk and Legal Implications

Once an Air Quality Management Area has been declared there is a legal
requirement to establish an Air Quality Action Plan consisting of measures to
improve the air quality towards achieving compliance with the National Air
Quality Standards for pollutants within the designated Air Quality Management
Area.

Failure to undertake Local Air Quality Management responsibilities may lead to
judicial review proceedings being progressed against the Council. If faced by a
judicial review the Council could not substantiate a case of failing to carry out its
responsibilities. In addition the Government has discretionary power, under the
Localism Act, to require responsible authorities to pay all or part of a fine
imposed by EU infraction proceedings.

7 Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 68



Agenda ltem 11

Environment and Sustainable
Communities Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

DurhamE{E
County Council &g E3
2 October 2014

Landscape Scale Projects

Joint report of Lorraine O’Donnell, Assistant Chief Executive and
lan Thompson, Corporate Director, Regeneration and Economic
Development

Purpose of the Report

1 To provide Members of the Environment and Sustainable Communities
Overview and Scrutiny Committee with background information on the
Landscape Scale projects prior to an overview presentation by Sue
Mullinger, Landscape Delivery Officer, Regeneration and Economic
Development.

Background

2 Members will recall that at previous meetings of the committee you have
received reports and presentations on various landscape scale projects
delivered by various partnerships. It was therefore thought appropriate
when refreshing the work programme for 2014/15 to provide members
with an overview of landscape scale programmes, identifying the various
projects and partnerships involved within the County, examples of
various projects they have delivered and next steps.

3 Arrangements have been made for Sue Mullinger, Landscape Delivery
Officer, Regeneration and Economic Development to attend the meeting
on the 2 October to deliver a presentation focusing on:

landscape-scale and what it means

why we need an integrated approach to the delivery of heritage initiatives
the benefits of landscape scale delivery

landscape scale projects within the County

keys to successful landscape scale working

landscape scale project legacy — lasting benefits from fixed term funded
programmes

Landscape Scale Projects — Background

4 Despite some recent improvements, our attempts to reverse decades of
decline in our wildlife, the habitats in which it lives and unique landscape
features and character have not had a significant impact. A more
sustainable approach is needed which thinks and acts on a larger scale
beyond maintaining individual sites. A landscape scale approach
involves considering the whole landscape and recognises that
addressing single issues in isolation does not reflect the way nature and
people work in a system.

Page 69



Common ground between disciplines such as ecology, archaeology and
history has potential to provide an integrated way of thinking to help
guide the delivery of heritage initiatives. Durham County Council has a
long and successful history of delivering such projects — and the term
‘landscape scale’ can probably be use to describe a number of initiatives
which predate widespread usage of the term — such as the Turning the
Tide project and Durham Hedgerow Partnership.

Popularity of the phrase ‘landscape scale’ has been boosted, no doubt,
by the Heritage Lottery Funded Landscape Partnership Programme
which was introduced about a decade ago. This fund is for schemes led
by partnerships of local, regional and national interests which aim to
conserve areas of distinctive landscape character throughout the UK.
Grants are for up to £3million. The County Council has been and still is,
involved in the development and delivery of a number of such schemes.
The Mineral Valleys project was led by Natural England with a total
budget of £5.2 million. Durham is currently leading on the Limestone
Landscapes Project which is a three year project worth £2.9million —
about to end later on this year. The Council is also helping to develop
the Land of Oak & Iron project which will be led by Gateshead Council.

There are a number of benefits to this approach. It provides a focus and
addresses priorities on a larger scale — which results in greater habitat
connectivity, placing ancient monuments in their historic setting and
‘joined up’ access and interpretation. It can also encourage
understanding and engagement. There are also multiple gains to be
made from partnership working — such as broader expertise and
resources, increased efficiency and reduced risk.

With a number of successful Landscape Partnership Schemes now
delivered, major funders such as Heritage Lottery have begun to look at
landscape legacy — or the enduring benefits which result from fixed term
funded programmes. Legacy can relate to the landscape as a whole,
such as improved relations between partners and methods of working; or
can be from individual benefits such as habitat and access creation. The
Coastal, Heritage and Landscape sub-group of the County Durham
Environment Partnership has also been considering lasting benefits
beyond HLF schemes — with particular interest given to the Limestone
Landscape Partnership which has recently gone through a forward
planning exercise and looks set to continue beyond the current
programme.

Recommendations

9

Page 70

That the members of the Environment and Sustainable Communities
Overview and Scrutiny Committee note and comment upon the
information provided in the attached report and presentation.



Background Papers
None

Contact: Sue Mullinger
Tel: 03000 267142

Contact: Tom Gorman
Tel: 03000 268027

Author: Diane.Close
Tel: 03000 268141

E-mail: sue.mullinger@durham.gov.uk

E-mail: tom.gorman@durham.gov.uk

E-mail: diane.close@durham.gov.uk.

Page 71



Appendix 1: Implications

Finance
None

Staffing
None

Risk
None

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
None

Accommodation
None

Crime and Disorder
None

Human Rights
None

Consultation
None

Procurement
None

Disability Issues
None

Legal Implications
None

Page 72 4



Agenda Item 12

Environment and Sustainable FEy
Communities Overview and 92
DurhamE&lE

Scrutiny Committee @

County Council 33\53;;3“

2" October 2014

Waste Programme - Update

Report of Terry Collins, Corporate Director, Neighbourhoods

Purpose of the Report

1 To provide Members of the Environment and Sustainable Communities
Overview and Scrutiny Committee with supporting information in advance of
the update on the waste programme.

Background

2 The work programme for Environment and Sustainable Communities
Overview and Scrutiny Committee includes monitoring the delivery of the
Council’'s waste strategy, which meets the objective of Reducing Waste within
the Altogether Greener section of the Council Plan for 2012 — 2016.

3 In June of 2013 a major milestone was reached within the Waste Programme
with the introduction of new waste management arrangements for the transfer,
haulage and disposal of residual waste collected from the kerbside and also
the management and operation of the household waste recycling centres
(HWRCs).

4 The introduction of the new arrangements has already generated improved
financial and environmental performance in the waste management service.

5 Current elements of the Waste Programme include the “Bin it Right” campaign
to reduce contamination in recycling bins and the introduction of a
subscription for Garden Waste collection. A briefing note on the contamination
campaign is included as Appendix 2. An information pack on Garden Waste is
included as Appendix 3.

6 An update on the progress of the waste programme will be presented by Alan
Patrickson, Head of Projects and Business Services for the information of the
committee.

Recommendation

7 It is recommended that the Environment and Sustainable Communities
Overview and Scrutiny Committee notes the waste programme update.

Page 73



Contact: Alan Patrickson
Tel: 03000 268165 E-mail: alan.patrickson@durham.gov.uk

Page 74 2



Appendix 1: Implications

Finance — The procurement of new waste contracts are expected to reduce ongoing
waste disposal costs and insulate the Council from future exposure to escalating
landfill tax payments.

Staffing - There will be some TUPE implications connected to the re-procurement
of services but no Council staff will be affected.

The implementation of new collection arrangements will have implications for
collection crews.

Risk — Procurement of services on the open market always present some level of
risk. Risks are managed within the project office and reviewed by the Waste Board
(of members and officers) on a monthly basis.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty — There are no equality and
diversity issues to be considered as part of this update. An equality and diversity
assessment for the introduction of a twin bin scheme has been completed.

Accommodation — none

Crime and Disorder - none

Human Rights — none

Consultation — Surveys have been undertaken.

Procurement — The procurement processes are supported by the Corporate
Procurement department supplemented by outside legal advice where appropriate.

Disability Issues — Addressed in the Equality and Diversity Assessment.

Legal Implications —. The Environment Protection Act 1990 places a duty on
the Council to arrange for the collection of household waste and waste from
commercial premises when requested to do so.

3 Page 75



Appendix 2 — Bin it Right Campaign

Hins, cans & paper, cardboard

pet waste food waste aerosols & cartons

Bag before placing in your rubbish bin. Wash, squash and place loose in this bin.

(¥recycle If in doubt, leave it out

1. Recycling Services
The Bin it right Campaign is in support of our recycling Services:

« Alternate Weekly Collections (AWC) were introduced for rubbish and
recycling across County Durham in 2012.

« Residents now have a recycling bin for tins, cans, cardboard, paper and
plastic bottles, tubs and trays and a recycling box for glass bottles and
jars.

« 2012/13 kerbside tonnage collected 46,713 tonnes

* Reuse, recycling and composting recycling rate for 2012/13 was 43.6%
(2013/14 - 42.8%)

2. Contamination — What are we finding?

The main contaminants found in recycling bins, in the County Durham area:

» Pet waste
+ Nappies and
 Food waste

Other common contaminants are:

Black Bags — items placed in black bags can'’t be recycled because the collection
crews can’t see what it is in the bag and it could contain contaminated recycling/
waste.

Page 76 4



Mixed plastics including polystyrene — markets for plastics other than bottles, pots,
tubs and trays are limited.

Textiles — cannot be processed at the sorting plant and can damage the sorting
equipment.

3. Why is it a problem?

It cost money!

Transporting, sorting and disposing of items that can’t be recycled costs money.
Contamination cost Durham County Council £100 per tonne.

It spoils clean recycling

When items that can’t be recycled (e.g. food waste, pet waste or nappies) are put in
a recycling bin, other materials such as newspapers and cardboard will become dirty
or wet and then often can’t be recycled.

It’s bad for the Environment
Not recycling the right items in your bin and box wastes time and energ% at the

sorting facility, also transporting the items for disposal creates more CO and other
greenhouse gases.

4. The Bin it Right Campaign

The Bin It Right contamination campaign commenced in April 2014.

The campaign will include:

+  Website, Facebook Page and Twitter Feeds.
Posters and Leaflets in Community Locations
Collection Vehicle Livery (Agripa Panel)
Leaflet and articles in Durham County News
Press Releases
Door-knocking in Targeted Areas (6 Recycling Assistants)
Roadshows and Community Events
Bins Stickers
Targeting Persistent Offenders (see next slide) and
Presentations to Community Groups/ Schools

5. Process
Collection crews report a contaminated bin via the in-cab Bartec system and
place a sticker on the bin detailing what contamination has been found. This
information is automatically forwarded to the CRM, so customer services can
relay information to residents on why their bin has been left.

Recycling Assistants door knocking and working with the crews to identify
contaminated recycling bins and engage with residents.

Stickers followed up by letters in a three stage process.

S Page 77



1

Page 78

th t
Between 9 June -15

h

August, 2014 a total of 5,030 letters have been issued.

From May — August, 23,973 door knocks have been conducted and over 7,742
people have been directly engaged on a face to face basis.

Results are seeing less rejected and downgraded material at the Material
Recycling Facilities (MRF’s).

00
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10

0

y 4 y & 4
Bin not emptied

In your bin we found

[ ] nappies [ ]petwaste [ ]food waste

[ ] garden waste [ ]glass []black bags

[ ] polystyrene [ ]rubble/soil [ ]general waste
[ plant pots/plastic trays

|other |

We have not emptied your bin as we cannot recycle the contents above.
Please remove these items so that it can be emptied on your next
collection day.

www.durham.gov.uk/whatgoeswhere
' O[Eu%ﬁmle call: 03000 26 1000

v

PV VPV O IVOTIY

Important notice

When emptying your bin we found

|:| nappies |:| pet waste |:| food waste

[ ] garden waste [ ]glass [ ]black bags

[ ]polystyrene [ Jrubble/soil [ ]general waste
|:| plant pots/plastic trays

|other |

Please do not place these items in this bin in future. We can't recycle
the contents of your bin if it contains these materials.

www.durham.gov.uk/whatgoeswhere
' O,rcech:le call: 03000 26 1000 15

v

PV VOV OO IO L

WEEKLY % OF DOWNGRADES (LOADS)

visits

Recycling assistants and

Al B b A A abx B (Do Do kBB b oD el Al e e BB e aBx W Gk W ,.\b‘ A A Al Aol WX

S S e e e e S e R e
QR 0 0,0 0% 0 0% Q7 07, 07,07, Q7,90 0,0,.9. 0,0 .0.0,9.9,0,90,0,0, 0,0, 8, 0,0,.0
,\Q‘(\' b"'b\'iﬁ\"\b"f],\' Q}’Q’\‘,\b" q/:\q/tb Qb“ \v\. \cb (,J Qrb. Qo-.’. ,\b' rb.(bQ. Q@. r(brLQrﬂQb‘ \1\. \lb. (ﬁ, Q\.ch. '\63‘{,]’(]9

PP PFPFPFPFPPPEFPFFIIPPPIPIIPIIIPIPIPLILILPLPELEEE



Appendix 3

Garden Waste 2015 — Introduction of
_the chargeable scheme

Key information pack

Page 79



Key communications dates

Page 80



Communications
method

Action

Deadline

Letter to households

Durham County News

Press releases

DCC website

Letter to households

Member briefing session

Agripa panels

Durham County News

Press releases

These updates will be supported by a variety of update / promotional

Letters to be issued to households eligible for
the scheme

Include back page advert in autumn edition of
Durham County News (distributed September
2014)

PR to announce introduction of changes and we
will be contacting all households eligible for the
scheme directly

Update Website homepage to include garden
waste link and refreshed webpages launched

Letters to be issued to households that are no
longer eligible for the scheme

Briefing on 2015 garden waste collections

Advertising panels on refuse and recycling
vehicles to promote garden waste scheme and
signpost to website.

Include article in winter edition of Durham
County News (distributed November 2014)

PR to announce end of collections in November,
thank people for recycling garden waste and
remind people about arrangements for 2015
collections.

05 - 26 September 2014

08 - 19 September 2014

08 September 2014

08 September 2014

12 September 2014

22 September 2014
1.30-3.30pm Committee
Room 1A

6.30-8.30pm Committee
Room 1B

Cctober 2014

November 2014

November 2014

communications to customers, staff and members throughout the subscription period

and beyond.

Page 81



Garden Waste 2015 - Introduction of the chargeable
scheme — at a glance

05/09/2014 - 26/09/2014

Go live & Letters to be issued to all eligible & ?7/03/2015
no longer eligjble customers Collections to commence
)
I

— | —
Y —— J

£ - '
Ty e 1 10/11/2014 - 19/12/2014 oo 01 15015 - 13/03/2015

§ ST L Bin take backs Bulk bin deliveries / exchanges

Anticipated bins collected
per vehicle per day

Of all properties in the
County are eligible for

M Garden Waste Collections

. with 184,655 eligible for DCQ
N collections

Properties will no longer be

able to access the service
due to not meeting the

eligibility criteria

(C¥recyde

for County Durham

Page 82



Key project dates

Page 83



Aepinies

IHdwor
suawdopaaap
IAj} 0F waishs

aadwos Suujen
SIHAIDG JAWIDISN)

DIUHUWOY
o) Buguud e

Aepsany |

$T 1snany

P19y suDiFsas b .
Buiyapq jers
=5 ol
o @

Aepsaupas

Aepsanj

Page 84



‘ﬂ:uﬂ ﬁ.—ﬂ-—ﬂ—
1o yneg ¥

panss| SIaNH

_ 10 y3ieg L€

panss) a3

joyneg 2

_ anasas 1) 3yqdna
JaBuD| OU SIFWOLIND
01 panssi JaNF}

| panss sIalH
_ _oﬁ.a.."
_
_

any| off vopiduasgns
Iwayds pue afedgap

M_

ASEM, USQUED Ipn{Iuy
o1 suojido auoydajan
1o atepdn wyBwaag

spioyasnoy
AGHP yum
AE O LINY
BYNeg

Sployasnoy
HNH yum
SALLE 01 AN
jouneg £

spjoyasnoy
3jqiHa JaTun
ON + Sployasnoy
G2 yum
SALLE O] 13|
joyeq 2

sproyasnoy
21qiHa yum

AL 0) S35
joyneq T

= T vy
T Jaquizydag

Page 85

Aepinies AEpiA Aepsintyy Aepsaupany Aepsan| Aepuon

$1 J9quualdas




Scheme boundary and key
iInformation

Page 86



Aeplrd g ¥aapm Jodag YInos - 42§ |-
Aepsiny) Z ¥aam jodaq tInos - £25
Aepssupapy g yaapm jodaq y3nos - 228
Aepsen) g yeom yodag yinosg - 12§ |
Aepid | yeop yodaQ Yyinos - LS
Aepsinyy | yeap jodag yInos - €15
Aepsaupap | yoam Jodag yinos - Z1S |
Aepsan] | yaop Jodag yinos - LIS
Aepud 7 yoop jodag YHON - ¥ZN
Aepsiny) 7 Joep Jodaq YHON - £2N |
Aepssupap Z yeom yodag YHON - ZZN
Aepsan) g joopm jodag YHoN - LZN
Aepud | jeom jodag YHON - #IN |,
Aepsinyy | jeopm yodag YLoN - LN
Aepsaupaps | yeop Jodeq yuoN - ZLN
Aepseny ) yaapm j0deq yuoN - LLN
A=pnd z yaep jodag Ise3 - v23

i i r_ ._.n_..-..
L .t H 8 =

Ty i 1 naw

Kepsiny], z yeep jodag 15e3 - £23 CO-HU@-OO.... T
Aepseupap Z yoam jodag iseg - zz3 ey
Aepsany z yoap jodeq 1se3 - 123 -S9Oy

Keppid ) yeap jodag yse3 - 413 e
Aepsiny] | yaam jodag iseq - €13 |
Aepsaupap | yaap 1odag 1se3 - Z1L3
Aepsan) | yaap Jodag 1sey - »vm
1Koy

[Py

oEm:ow :o;om__oo a)sep

-

Y :m_u._mo ummono#_ .o_u_muro .

L &
i Vsl ppiimern

VEPT BTV
Bomp; gy

aUBYIS :o_uom__oo mammgfcwumw..mu

| 16y Arepunog pasodoig

O, \rlaal




il 1.1

45 e
It

ajedioued sasnoy
JO % |G - POOMUBAT
" | ayedjopaed sesnoy | o : % 4
A 10 nse - Roumsiod | awayos :o_u&w_l_ow‘,mu,mms :
o\~ o [P ] . :m_u._mpu uwmono._m m_u.,ma.:o
P - ..p.n J._._...,___rm___wm o] v ok 3 o

g e A Bm Mool aediopued sasnoy (. . N
. _;. m;Em:oQ.: aom__oo\\ i uo %89 - Em;msm_es ?.H_.,..... Yy
- 0)SEM UBPIESD) PRISHO. TN > S
P e t_.. : ..._. R ..r...i P ] ! e A e
Sh gt mn_ Ou mw._<. —uwwOanOhn_ e I ) | ayedopued sasnoy I
{ . : 4 e e 7 0 .x,hn mno::Bm asjes aysem :au._mm aay e

Lurga R

i o ] L |
[T TR

y

_._,__ 21

&l o _ouun_u_tm..._ mmm.:o.._ ._ e — ; i
S _o .x,...w PI3I09 | - - _mm._< Lm ___m h
= :o_uom:oo :

asn o) pajdo eale S|} u|
sejpadoud jo o2z AlUO
T e RS

| 40 %26 - opisansed )

o A pires R ’ ) T -
4l ..I......_ e [ e o, o' . P
. .r_..._ .‘-I_.-i.__ .

N ok u wEm:om :oaom__oo wawmgfcm_u._m@
R o f 1 aef Arepunog pasodoid

g e =yl I




| etter to be issued to all eligible
households

Page 89



County Council ¥

Dear Occupier, September 2014

Changes to the garden waste collection service
Garden waste reference number

We are making some changes to the garden waste collection service, which is a discretionary service provided by
Durham County Council. With Government spending cuts, the authority must save £224 million overall between 2011
and 2017. It is no longer possible to fund garden waste collections from current budgets and from 2015 we need to
introduce a subscription fee for the service to continue.

Your property is eligible for garden waste collections. If you would like to receive a collection service in 2015 you will
need to subscribe to the scheme.

Please note, these changes only apply to garden waste collections. Your rubbish and recycling will continue
to be collected as usual.

Subscription fees
Option 1: Annual fee of £20
For a fee of £20 you will receive 16 forinightly collections between March and October 2015.

Option 2: Three year fee of £50
For a fee of £50 you will receive 16 fortnightly collections between spring and autumn each year in 2015, 2016 and 2017,

You can subscribe to the service at any time during the year but to receive all 16 collections in 2015, you must
subscribe by 1 February 2015.

The above fees are for collections from one garden waste bin. If your property has not previously received the garden
waste collection service and you do not have a garden waste bin, we will provide your first bin free of charge.

If you would like more than one garden waste bin, each additional bin will cost £20. You will also need to pay the
subscription fee for the emptying of each additional bin.

By paying for garden waste collections, you agree to the terms and conditions of the service. You can find the terms
and conditions at www.durham.gov.uk/gardenwaste or call 03000 26 1000.

How to subscribe for collections

Please note, credit card payments are subject to a 2% administration fee.

If you already have one garden waste bin:

A Online - go to www.durham.gov.uk/gardenwaste and complete the form to subscribe for collections.

Telephone — call 03004 562771, select the option for garden waste and enter your garden waste reference number.
Cash — take this letter to a Post Office or PayPoint outlet and use the barcode above to pay your £20 or £50.

Cheque - make your cheque payable to Durham County Council, write your garden waste reference number on the
back of the cheque and send to Durham County Council, PO Box 253, Stanley, County Durham DH8 1GF.

v v 3¢

If you don't already have a garden waste bin or would like to receive garden waste collections from more
than one bin:

& Online - go to www.durham.gov.uk/gardenwaste and complete the form to subscribe for collections.
# Telephone - call us on 03000 26 1000.

Once you subscribe we will send you a sticker for your garden waste bin, a collection calendar, and a bin if you don’t
already have one. We will issue stickers and calendars during February and March in time for the first collections.

P a0
age Please tumn over...



If you don’t want to receive garden waste collections

If you don’t want to receive garden waste collections you don't need to do anything with this letter. If you would like us
to remove your bin, complete the online form at www.durham.gov.uk/gardenwaste.

Further information

If you need further information please see the frequently asked questions at www.durham.gov.uk/gardenwaste or call
03000 26 1000.

Yours faithfully
Garden waste team

Important changes to
garden waste collection
service inside

Eol' E
www.durham.gov.uk/gardenwaste
=17
O r_ECYCIE /cltojetker jm' eney :.""“ ::". '

B, County Counil g

=" For County Durham



Letter to be issued to all households
no longer eligible

Page 92



Dear Occupier, September 2014

Changes to the garden waste collection service

We are making some changes to the garden waste collection service, which is a discretionary service
provided by Durham County Council. With Government spending cuts, the authority must save

£224 million overall between 2011 and 2017. We have carried out a review of garden waste
collections as it is no longer possible to fund this service from current budgets.

From 2015 the garden waste collection service will be provided on a subscription basis to eligible
households within a defined area of the county. This means that not all properties that currently
receive garden waste collections wili be eligible to receive the service in future.

Unfortunately, from 2015 we are no longer able to provide a garden waste collection service to your
property for one of the following reasons:

The property is not situated within the scheme collection area. °

& The property is not situated on an adopted or planned adopted highway.

The property cannot be accessed with our garden waste collection vehicle.

The property does not have a garden.

b4

[l
#

{4

»

i,
LR

We apologise for any inconvenience this may cause.

Please note, these changes only apply to garden waste collections from 2015. Your rubbish and
recycling will continue to be collected as usual.

What happens next

You will continue to receive garden waste collections in 2014.
From 2015 you can recycle your garden waste by:

M Com1posting - We are offering home compost bins at subsidised rates. Please see the
reverse of this letter for details.

% Using household waste recycling centres - Details of your nearest centre and opening
times can be found at www.durham.gov.uk/HWRC.

If you would like us to remove your garden waste bin, complete the online form at
www.durham.gov.uk/gardenwaste or call 03000 26 1000.

If you believe your property should qualify for garden waste collections please complete the appeal
form at www.durham.gov.uk/gardenwaste or call 03000 26 1000.

Yours faithfully
Garden waste team

Page 93



Home compost bin

Available in two sizes:
220 litre £19.98 plus delivery
330 litre £22.98 plus delivery

Order online at www.getcomposting.com
or call 0844 571 4444 quoting reference DCCO5L

(vrecycle Prices valid uniil 31 March 2015.

: _g: Ji3Unoy Ajunoy

4t ieying

Important changes to
garden waste collection
service inside

Y Durham #.3Y
L County Counil 5l

Altojetﬁer greener



Draft confirmation letter and collection
calendar

Page 95



Durham!

County Council

Dear Householder, February 2015

Garden waste collection service - 2015

Thank you for signing up to Durham County Council's garden waste collection service.

Enclosed is a bin sticker which you need to attach to your garden waste bin. Write your address on
the sticker and fix it to the main body of the bin, directly under the handle as shown in the diagram
overleaf,

The collection calendar below gives details of your garden waste collections for this year. You can
also find your collection day by visiting www.durham.gov.uk and entering your postcode into

My Durham. Please note, your garden waste collection may not be on the same day as your rubbish
and recycling collections.

Please put your bin out by 7am on the day of collection. If you receive assisted bin collections, our
staff will move the bin for you.

Yours faithfully
Garden waste team

Durham %%

County Council '35 :‘I'I

Garden waste collections 2015
Your collection day is a Tuesday

March APRIL MAY JUNE
SMTWTES S MTWTF S SMTWTES SMTWTEFEF §
1 28 480609 1020130 1049 1 2 3 4 5 8
8 ¢ 10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 456 7 89 7_3(?10111213
15 16@13 19 20 21 12 13494)15 16 17 18 10 1 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 18 20
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 70 20 21 22 23 21 222324 25 26 27
29 303D 26 27(28)29 30 24 25(26)27 28 29 30 28 29 30

a1

JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER
SMTWTEFES SMTWTEF S SMTWTEF S SMTWTTF S

1.2 3 4 1 A2 3 4 5 12 3
56(;1)891011 2 3 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 4 5 87 8 8 10
12 13 74 15 16 17 18 g 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14516 17 18 19 11 124314 15 16 17
19 20¢21) 22 23 24 25 16 17¢18)12 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 75 26 27 28 29 27 2829 30 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

Page 96

30 31



Attach the sticker to the body of

the bin underneath the handle. What goes in the
P garden waste bin

¢/ Yes please X No thanks

Grass cuttings Plastic/black bags
Shrubs Plant pots/plastic trays
Leaves Kitchen/food waste
Weeds Soilibricks/rubble
Flowers and bedding  Nappies

plants Paper/plastic/cardboard
Hedge clippings Textiles

Prunings Pet waste

Small branches Biodegradable or compostable bags
(no larger than 7cm Children’s toys

in diameter) Garden ornaments

Page 97




In scheme sticker

Page 98



b.__

................................................................................ WW@.—UU(

mFoN

uond3|oY
9)SeM uap.es

Page 99



Selection of communications /
marketing information to be utilised

Page 100



mﬂ. {13unoD Alunody

g weying Aou324h. xmfem.ﬁnﬁ
e

023
7 UVIA
- 0S3 .
~ SMVIA
€

ajsemuapiehn-aob weyinp-mmm
UooMla( SUO1O2]|0D \n_uﬁr_@_ctom

SU0I}23]|0D



Garden
waste
collections
8. o in 2015

[
Va
R From there Is a
= "‘":"'-. \ . “
i r;éf T £k charge for all garden waste
& g collections.

3% Sign up for 1 year

£20 for 16 fortnightly collections between
March and October 2015.

% Sign up for 3 years

£50 for 16 collections per year in 2015, 2016
and 2017.

Terms and conditions apply.

To find out if your property is eligible
LS for garden waste collections and to

g D) subscribe to the service:

. ‘ : ﬁ.:_fi visit www.durham.gov.uk/gardenwaste
Y call 03000 26 1000

EiE

O recycle Altvﬁether greener
for County Durham
Page 102



ng?f‘}y/ waste
Y collections
o in 2015

From there is a
charge for all garden waste
collections.

To receive a collection service, sign up
to one of the following options and pay
the subscription fee.

2 Sign up for 1 year
£20 for 16 fortnightly collections
between March and October 2015.

& Sign up for 3 years
£50 for 16 collections per year in
2015, 2016 and 2017.

2F. Terms and conditions apply.

C

B County Council gl e

St g e

S

e i
Durham ¥ %8

Page 103



How it works

Once you have subscribed you will receive
a sticker for your garden waste bin and
collection calendar to advise you of your
coilection dates.

Who can sign up

More than 190,000 properties in County
Durham are eligible for garden waste
collections. Even if you haven't received
< garden waste collections in the past your
property may be eligible for collections
from 2015. In the Teesdale area, garden
waste is collected by Teesdale Conservation
Volunteers (trading as Rotters). Please visit
www.rotters.org for details of their garden
waste collection service.

How to sign up

Online: www.durham.gov.uk/gardenwaste
Call: 03000 26 1000

When to sign up

You can sign up for collections at any point but
to receive all 16 collections in 2015 you must
subscribe by 1 February 2015.

Further information
Visit www.durham.gov.uk/gardenwaste

Please ask us if you would like this document
summarised in another language or format.

help@durham.gov.uk
03000 26 1000

F ]

Page 104



suoi3oo]|00 (N
ajsem uapied IEE




Service Standards / Terms and
Conditions

Page 106



Garden Waste Collection Service
Service Standards / Terms and Conditions

The following areas define the expectations and limitations of the Garden Waste
Collection Service in line with our refuse and recycling policy; see link:

Service description

Service eligibility

Application process / payment

Refunds

Garden waste bins

Coliection days

Presenting garden waste bins

Assisted collections (Help to put your bin out)

© o N2 O~ ®N

Appeals process
10. Missed garden waste bins
11.Moving house

12.What can be put in a garden waste bin? - Acceptable material, contamination
and overweight garden waste bins

13. Your right to cancel the service
14, Statutory rights
15.Data protection statement

1. Service description

The garden waste collection service runs from spring — autumn and is
chargeable. The Council will carry out a maximum of 16 garden waste collections
per household during this period. A sticker and a garden waste bin will be
provided, which will be emptied on a day specified by the Council once in every
two weeks.

2. Service eligibility

Subject to the following points, the Council will offer its garden waste collection
service to all households within the scheme area identified in the plan below. The
service will not be offered to properties or service collection areas if it is not
operationally practicable to do so within current resources.

Page 107



Garden Waste Collection

'_Scheme Operational Areas |

Page 108

. Waste Collection

Outside Garden . Offered Ga’rden:ﬁaste -
Collgct_igﬁ?Schggme_

Scheme Area =

Each collection area/property must be easily accessible by a 26 tonne refuse
collection vehicle. This includes being able to empty bins and manoeuvre the
collection vehicle (tum round) easily and safely.

The scheme is only available to those properties with gardens that lie within
the identified scheme area.

The garden waste bin must be stored within the boundaries of the property.

Collections will only be offered to properties on either an adopted or planned
adopted highway.

it should be noted that the above eligibility criteria apply to all properties including
those properties that require an assisted collection.

Application process / payment

a)

b)

d)

Residents will be required to subscribe for the garden waste collection service
on an annual basis. Discounts and incentives schemes may be offered to / or
removed from residents at the Council’s discretion and will be promoted by
the Council.

The Council reserves the right to refuse an application for the garden waste

collection service based on the criteria for the scheme as described in section
2.

The payment for the collection service will be £20 per year per bin,

Payment can be made by various methods including over the internet, over
the telephone including by automated payment telephone line, Post Office &
PayPoint or by post.



e) Residents can register throughout the year. Later registrations will receive
fewer collections during the period of the service.

f) Upon receipt of payment the Council will issue a garden waste sticker and a
garden waste bin within 10 working days* (Exemptions to this policy apply
during the initial scheme rollout, during inclement weather, in cases of
operational difficulty or any event of ‘Force Majeure)).

g} The council reserves the right to vary the fee. Appropriate notice will be given
prior to any alteration.

h) All credit card payments are subject to a 2% administration fee.

i) The Council has a duty to keep records up to date therefore we require
customers to notify us of any changes to their personal details.

. Refunds

a) Except where cancelled in accordance with section 13, no refunds will be
provided for cancellation of the service.

b) If there is any misuse of the service or the garden waste bins for that
household then the service may be cancelied by the Council; there will be no
refund in these circumstances.

¢) If a collection has been missed by the Council, a repeat collection will be
provided. There are no refunds of all or part fees for missed collections.

. The garden waste bins

a) The garden waste bin(s) is provided for use by householder(s), but remains
the property of the Council. There is no limit to the number of garden waste
bins that can be supplied per property.

b} If requested, householders will be provided with additiona! garden waste bins
at an additional cost of £20 for each bin plus the charge for the collection
service per year.

¢) Where no garden waste collection service has previously been provided,
householders will be issued with the first garden waste bin free of charge.

d) Only garden waste bins supplied by the Council, will be emptied. Garden
waste presented in any other container will not be collected.

e) Requests for garden waste bins will be logged and issued by the Council
within 10 working days*.(Exemptions to this policy apply during the initial
scheme rollout, during inclement weather, in cases of operational difficulty or
any event of ‘Force Majeure).

f)} The garden waste bins will be supplied clean and in a useable condition. The
registered person is responsible for the general condition and cleaning of the
garden waste bin whilst in their possession.

g) There will be a charge for replacement bin(s) if it has been damaged and
cannot be repaired by the Council free of charge. There will also be a charge
for replacement bin(s) if either lost or stolen. A wheeled bin lost/stolen will be
subject to a £20 charge, subsequent bins lost/ stolen will be replaced free of
charge by the Council within a rolling calendar year of the initial replacement.

Page 109



h} The Council will accept no liability for garden waste bins used for any other

)

k)

purpose other than for the collection of garden waste. Misused garden waste
bins may be removed.

The Council reserves the right to remove all garden waste bins that are not
used for the garden waste collection service or if there is evidence of misuse.

On payment of the annual subscription the Council will issue each
householder with a bin sticker. Stickers issued by the Council for the garden
waste collection service must be placed below the bin handle and are the
responsibility of the householder. Garden waste bins must be presented with
the sticker facing towards road / collection route.

No service will be provided for garden waste bins not displaying a garden
waste sticker and / or not recorded on the Council’s Bartec system (electronic
information recording system) for the corresponding year.

Collection days

a)

b)

Garden waste will be collected once every two weeks on a specified day. The
Council reserves the right to alter the collection day, but will provide notice to
subscribers of any changes.

The service operates from Tuesday to Friday. Subscribers will be issued with
collection details prior to the service starting showing the proposed dates for
collection of the garden waste bin.

The council reserves the right to alter the dates of the collection season or
collection days. Appropriate notice will be given prior to any alteration.

(*Exemptions to this policy apply during the initial scheme rollout, during
inclement weather, in cases of operational difficulty or any event of ‘Force
Majeure)).

Presenting garden waste bins

a)

Garden waste bin(s) must be presented at the kerbside on the boundary of
the property (identified by the postal address) by 7.00am on the day of
collection. The garden waste bin(s) are to be placed at the same point as the
residual and recycling collection service bin(s} for collection on their
respective day of collection.

All garden waste bins must be clearly visible from the road, without any
obstructions, away from hedges and walls.

After emptying, the garden waste bins will be returned to the boundary of the
property. It is the resident’s responsibility to ensure that the garden waste bins
are brought back onto their property the same day.

8. Assisted collections (help to put your bin out)

Page 110

An assisted collection service is available upon request for eligible
households. If you already receive assisted collections and you are eligible for
the Garden Waste Collection Service, it will automatically be arranged for your
garden waste bin when you subscribe.



9. Appeals process

a) You have the right to appeal to the Council if your property has been excluded
from the scheme but you feel that your property is eligible based on the
criteria outlined in point 2 above.

b) A review of all relevant information submitted will be undertaken by the
Council but if the appeal is not upheld no further appeals may be submitted
unless there has been a change in your circumstances.

c) You can appeal by going online and compieting the online form or by
contacting Customer Services.

N.B. The appeal should contain reasons why you feel your property meets the
eligibility criteria set out in clause 2 together with any supporting information.

10.Missed garden waste bins

a) Garden waste bins are to be presented for collection by 7.00am on the
designated day of collection.

b) If garden waste bins are not presented by 7.00am on the day of collection,
garden waste bins cannot be reported as missed and will not be considered
as a ‘missed’ collection. Responsibility for disposal of the waste will then
become that of the householder.

¢) Garden waste bins not presented for collection at the time the bin crew arrive
at the property will be recorded on the round sheet / electronic Bartec system,
which will be submitted to the supervising officer and customer service team
at the end of the working day.

d) If a bin is recorded on the round sheet/Bartec system as ‘not presented’,
responsibility for disposal will become that of the householder and the Council
will not return to collect the waste.

e) Should a missed collection be reported on the designated day of collection
(subject to the record sheet/Bartec system not showing the bin as being ‘not
presented’ for collection) where possible, the Council will return and collect
the waste by the end of the next working day.

f) Where householders do not present their garden waste bin for collection in
accordance with Council requirements, the householder will have the
following options:

o take the waste to the Household Waste Recycling Centre;
» store the waste until the next collection day;

g) All garden waste must be presented safely and suitably in the bin provided on
the next collection day.

11.Moving house

Page 111



a) The scheme relates to a collection service from a particular property or

b)
c)

household. The service is not transferable either within or outside of County
Durham. The payment made is for the collection service at the property.

if you move house, please leave the garden waste bin at the property.

The Council has a duty to keep records up to date therefore we require
customers to notify us of any changes to their personal details.

12.What can be put in your garden bin? - Acceptable material, contamination
and overweight garden waste bins

a) Only loose garden waste may be placed in the garden waste bin. Garden

b)

waste includes grass cuttings, flowers, small tree branches, loose leaves,
shrub and hedge trimmings, but not large branches (greater than 7cm in
diameter), and no turf, earth, soil, stones, gravel etc. The garden waste must
not be placed in plastic bags or any other sort of packaging, as this affects the
composting process and contaminates the resultant compost.

Contaminated garden waste bins (i.e. bins containing incorrect materials) will
not be emptied. If the bin is contaminated it is your responsibility to remove
the item(s) of contamination prior to the next collection. If the contamination
continues, the Council may remove the bin without refund.

Garden waste bins that are overflowing or overweight will not be emptied. A
sticker will be placed on the bin by the crew to identify it as being overweight
when they are either not able to move the garden waste bins, or the vehicle is
not able to lift the bin to empty it. If the bin is too full or overweight, it is the
householder’s responsibility to remove the item(s) prior to the next collection.
If the householder fails to do so we may remove the bin without refund.

The bin lid must be closed when presented for collection.

No side waste will be collected, i.e. no extra waste next to the bin or
balanced on the lid.

13.Your right to cancel the service

Page 112

You have 14 working days from date of payment to cancel the service. Requests
to cancel the service must be in writing to:

Durham County Council,

Business Support Services

Neighbourhood Services
County Hall

Durham
DH1 5UQ

or by email to referencing ‘garden waste cancellation’, the
8 digit customer reference number and the relevant contact details.

Cancellations cannot be accepted by telephone.



Your details will be retained for marketing purposes for the Council's waste
related services for 1 year should you ‘opt out’ of the scheme.

14. Statutory Rights

These terms and conditions of the garden waste collections service do not affect
your statutory rights.

15.Data Protection Statement
Information we collect?

We collect information about you when you subscribe to this service; the
information collected is detailed below:

. Name

. Property address

. Email address

. Telephone number

The Council has a duty to keep records up to date therefore we require
customers to notify us of any changes to their personal details.

How we will use this information?

When you subscribe to the service, we collect information about you to allow us
to provide the service and to allow us to contact you in relation to the renewal of
your current subscription.

In the future we may need to contact you with relevant service updates for
example; mechanical failure with one vehicle. Therefore we would contact you
via text message as traditional mail would not be practical.

Marketing

Your personal details will not be passed to any other organisation or third party.
We may contact you regarding other waste related services or products offered

by us that we feel may be of interest or to participate in customer satisfaction
surveys.

If you wish to receive marketing information in relation to the Council's waste
related services, you must ‘opt in' upon subscription to the service. Your details
will be retained for 4 years for marketing purposes. You can ‘opt out’ at any time
should you wish to have your details removed by telephoning 03000 261000.

*Exemptions to this policy apply during the initial scheme rollout, during inclement
weather, in cases of operational difficulty or any event of ‘Force Majeure’.

Page 113



For the purposes of these terms and conditions “Force Majeure” means an event
or circumstance which is beyond the reasonable control of the Council and shall
include war, civil war, armed conflict or terrorism, strikes, lockouts or other
industrial actions, riot, fire, flood and earthquake.

Page 114



Altogether

greener

Agenda Item 13

County Durham Environment Partnership Board

Apologies

Julian Carrington
Gordon Elliott
Stuart Timmiss

Attendees:
Chair: Terry Collins

Julie Form

Adrian Vass

Jim Cokill

Claire Thompson
Oliver Sherratt
Steve Bhowmick
Maggie Bosanquet
Jayne Watson
Vicki Burrell

Stella Hindson
Beverley Clark (Minutes)

Minutes

Thursday 15™ May 2014
Burlison Room, Town Hall, Durham

Environment Agency
Durham County Council
Durham County Council

Durham County Council

Groundwork North East
Natural England
Durham Wildlife Trust
Durham Wildlife Trust
Durham County Council
Durham County Council
Durham County Council
Durham County Council
Durham County Council
Durham County Council
Durham County Council

Item
No.

Subject

Action By

1.

Welcome and Introductions

The chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and
apologies noted. Claire Thompson the new LNP Officer
was introduced. No apologies were received from Steve
Hunter. Terry to contact Steve Hunter.

Terry Collins

Minutes and Matters Arising

Consideration was given to the minutes of 20th March
2014. Julie Form requested that the minutes be corrected
in relation to Item 5, Group Update.

Oliver Sherratt stated that he has been liaising with Steve
Bhowmick regarding Britain in Bloom.

Presentation from Economic Partnership and
Questions
Maggie Bosanquet gave a presentation on European
Funding regarding the Low Carbon Economy. The main
points of the presentation being:
e Within ERDF funding there is a ring fenced
allocation which must be spent on the Low Carbon

Page 1 of 5

Page 115



Economy. The amount allocated to Durham is
around £14m.

Domestic energy efficiency — improve the energy
efficiency of domestic housing stock using a mix of
low carbon interventions. Support and enable
exemplar area-based schemes and develop low
carbon demonstration projects in community and
public buildings.

Business energy efficiency — an intensive
programme to enhance business energy and
resource efficiency and resilience through expert
advice, skill development, building retrofit and
process improvements.

Public and community buildings programme — to
demonstrate practical implementation of
approaches to improve sustainability and reduce
energy use.

Low carbon supply chains — to develop supply
chains to realise the unique opportunities from the
low carbon economy in the North East including
renewables, building retrofit, biomass and new and
innovative technologies. For County Durham the
most important thing is to develop the biomass of
that chain.

Renewable energy generation — to promote the
uptake of renewable energy technologies through
district heat, biomass, waste to energy, community
owned renewables, solar photo voltaic, micro-hydro
and air/ground source heat pumps.

New and innovative technologies — drive low carbon
economic growth through new and innovative
technologies including offshore wind, wave and tidal
technologies, geothermal energy, hydrogen capture
and storage, electric vehicles, battery storage and
smart grids, carbon capture and storage. It was
noted for information that Chris Tennant from the
University is carrying out studies into smart grids
and battery storage.

Green infrastructure improvements — programme of
green infrastructure improvements to create more
resilient communities, businesses and infrastructure
using Sustainable Urban Drainage and flood
mitigation schemes, peatland protection, wetland
and woodland creation.

The group held a discussion in relation to
contaminated land across County Durham.

Low carbon skils and training - targeted
recruitment, apprenticeships and self-employment
support; community led projects to support low
carbon activity; improved links between business
and educators — internships and student
placements.

Page 116

Page 2 of 5




Maggie to electronically send Low Carbon and Sustainable
Growth document to all.

Adrian Vass to send ‘Roots to Prosperity’ document
electronically to all.

It was suggested that a representative from Durham
University should be invited to attend future board
meetings. Julie Form stated that the University has
representation on the Environment in Your Communities
group. Terry to invite a University Board Member.

Maggie
Bosanquet
Adrian Vass

Terry Collins

Updates from Group Chairs and Questions

Coastal, Heritage & Landscape Group

Oliver Sheratt reported that the group had looked into
European funding and it has a good understanding of
what’s there. He then gave an update on current projects:
Heritage Coast — the coastal path opened on 12" April.
Land of Oak and Iron — received a helpful presentation
from the project officer.

Limestone Landscapes — has recorded 2,421 volunteers
contributing over 22,000 volunteer hours.

Durham Hedgerow Partnership — work is going well.
Looking at work to tie in with council estates.

Piloting wildflower meadows with publicity taking place
later in the year.

Hedgerow Partnership — providing training to DCC crews
and tree tagging scheme.

Heritage skills and green jobs — there’s a meeting with
Groundwork coming up.

Heritage open days — thinking of extending to gardens.
Heritage at Risk — looking at improving training events.
Profile and engagement — raising the profile of Britain in
Bloom.

Skerne Lands Project — holding a meeting to progress
further. Looking to developing a new landscape initiative.
Life After Landscape Project — ongoing.

Environment in Your Communities

Julie Form reported that:

The group’s next meeting is 20" May.

Big Spring Clean — work is ongoing.

The group is putting together an events calendar, this also
includes Durham University events as the group is liaising
with a representative from the university.

Nourishing Neighbourhoods — would like to see the market
garden idea off the ground, where a centralised location
can be used for skills, training and local community
engagement.

Tim Wright is to attend the next meeting.

Climate Change

Maggie Bosanquet gave the group update:

Craghead presentation.

A meeting with Ewan Boyd had taken place regarding 11
renewable energy schemes.

Page 3 of 5

Page 117



The group had looked at potential flooding areas.

Working with Durham University regarding World
Environment Day and jointly screening a film in Market
Place on 13" June with a discussion afterwards in the
Town Hall.

Sustainable Schools Conference on 3™ October in
Durham.

Local Nature Partnership

Jim Cokill reported that Claire has been in post since 12"
May. Her job entails developing the partnerships vision
and influencing other sectors.

Health and wellbeing are two major issues. A paper going
to Economic and Regeneration highlights this issue.

On a wider level the Northern Upland Chain LNP
presented a proposal to engage Ministerial interest in the
idea of Environmental Investment Plans that would be
mandated by Government and funded cross-
departmentally. Chris Woodley-Stewart is doing excellent
work in lobbying ministers for funding.

Environment Partnership Communications

Mock-ups of award certificate designs were circulated by
Stella Hindson.

It was agreed by the group that the A4 earthy coloured,
caring for your environment design should be used. The
signature/name at the bottom of the certificate can be in
either of the group chairs names or Terry Collins name.
Vicki and Stella to coordinate  photos/media
coverage/photo consent policy etc.

A discussion took place about who the awards should be
given too. Oliver pointed out that the works carried out on
the Riverbanks clean up would have been an ideal
example for awards to be given.

Terry would like to see a partnership newsletter involving
all groups.

Julie asked that members of the group populate the
calendar of events so everyone is up to date with what's
happening.

Stella pointed out that she would like to make more use of
DCC’s website.

Vicki added that Internal Audit has offered 10 days of their
time looking into Partnerships. Audit is recommending a
Sharepoint type system be used by the Partnership.

Vicki
Burrell/Stella
Hindson

Stella
Hindson/Vicki
Burrell

All

Environment Awards Update

Steve Bhowmick reported that preparations are taking
place for the Environment Awards launch.

Steve to circulate the Environment Awards poster
electronically to all.

The launch is taking place on 5th June at the Gala
Theatre, about 200 people have been invited (Invites have
gone out). There will be an event on the morning with the
Leader of the Council doing the opening. Terry Collins to
make a speech about it being the 25" year. Rod Lugg has

Steve
Bhowmick

Page 118

Page 4 of 5




been invited to make a speech on how the Environment
Awards started.

Judging - 3 new group areas — Sustainable projects,
Communities and Built and Natural Environment.

Terry is to do the wrap up and introduce the new category
with a few words from Oliver regarding Britain in Bloom.
Steve Bhowmick is to close the show followed by lunch
and a discussion. There is a need to get some press and
publicity around it.

Award entries are open till mid July with the final taking
place on 13" November at the Radisson Hotel.

There’s a possibility that John Grundy will be a guest
speaker at the final.

Budget situation — there has been some strong sponsors
again this year, for example Groundwork and Sita however
some sponsors have come in lower than anticipated. The
budget is currently £12,750 but more funding is required.
Steve to speak to Terry regarding the budget.

Steve added if anyone is aware of companies that might
be interested in sponsorship to please contact him.

Steve
Bhowmick

AOB

Oliver introduced Pauline Walker and Stuart Clasper from
the Civic Pride team. They brought with them a foamex
board advertising Britain in Bloom. A mosaic is to be
produced for the judges to see. Photos for the promotion
of Britain in Bloom were taken.

Julie Form pointed out the need to reduce the amount of
paper brought to the meeting.

All to note

Page 5 of 5

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 120



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meetings held on 1 May, 3 July,  11 July, 14 July and 8 September 2014
	Minutes , 03/07/2014 Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	Minutes , 11/07/2014 Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	140714 Woodlands_Notes Final
	080914 Coast Notes

	7 Neighbourhood Services Revenue and Capital Outturn 2013/14 and Revenue and Capital Outturn Quarter 1 2014/15
	Q1 OSC - NS 14-15 Outturn

	8 Quarter 1 2014/15 Performance Management Report
	9 Reducing the Council's Carbon Emissions - Scrutiny Review - Update on recommendations
	Cabinet response  - to reducing the Council's carbon emmissions - template with recs -2 October 2014

	10 Air Quality Action Plan and Consultation Strategy - Update
	11 Landscape Scale Projects - Overview
	12 Waste Programme - Update
	Complete Members Info Pack

	13 Minutes of the County Durham Environment Partnership Board held on 15 May 2014

